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This 2003 Concise Annual Report is a summary of Woodside’s 

activities and financial position.

In this document, the use of “this Report” refers to the 2003 

Concise Annual Report. The expressions “Woodside”, “the 

Company” and “the Group” refers to Woodside Petroleum Ltd. 

and its controlled entities as a whole and “NWS Venture” refers 

to the North West Shelf Venture.

The Concise Financial Report included in this Report is derived 

from the 2003 Full Financial Report presented in a separate 

document. The Concise Financial Report cannot be expected to 

provide as full an understanding of the financial performance, 

financial position and financing and investing activities of Woodside 

as the Full Financial Report. You may obtain a copy of the Full 

Financial Report if you wish (see page 42 of this Report for details).

Reference in this Report to a “year” is to the calendar year ended 

31 December 2003 unless otherwise stated.

All dollar figures are expressed in Australian currency unless 

otherwise stated.
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Representing global growth and Woodside’s three regions of focus, pictured is an LNG ship in voyage. The ship – the Northwest Swallow – 

is one of the fleet of eight used by the NWS Venture to ship LNG from the NWS production facilities to Japan. All ships within the fleet have a 

capacity of 125,000 cubic metres. To symbolise the NWS Venture’s strong link between Japan and Australia, the NWS LNG ships are all named 

after birds which are either permanent inhabitants or regular visitors to both Australia’s North West and Japan. The Sanderling, Swift, Swallow, 

Snipe, Shearwater, Sandpiper, Sea Eagle and Storm Petrel are the eight birds honoured by having ships named after them.

Woodside Petroleum Ltd.
(A.B.N. 55 004 898 962)



Commitment to Growth
Woodside is Australia’s leading oil and gas exploration and production company 
with interests across the globe. The Company has three regions of focus – Australia, 
Africa and the United States of America.

The year 2004 marks the Company’s 50th anniversary. In 50 years, Woodside has 
transformed itself from a struggling junior explorer to Australia’s largest independent 
listed oil and gas company with a market capitalisation of around $10 billion. Woodside 
is the operator of over 40 joint ventures on behalf of 34 participants. The Company’s 
strength is underpinned by world class assets, including the North West Shelf Venture 
where Woodside operates production which accounts for more than 40% of Australia’s 
hydrocarbon production.

On behalf of our co-venturers, Woodside produced 214.9 million barrels of oil equivalent 
in 2003. Woodside’s share of production for the year was 58.9 million barrels of oil 
equivalent, with revenue of $2 billion.

The Company’s reserves are long-life reserves. Woodside’s proved and probable reserves 
are sufficient to sustain production at current levels for over 20 years. Proved reserves 
increased for the fourth consecutive year, with this year’s increase equating to 105% 
of annual production, whilst proved and probable reserves were able to replace just 
over 99% of annual production.

Woodside’s objective is to increase in size and in profitability and to deliver to our 
shareholders, through a combination of dividends and growth in share price, sustained 
returns which, in comparison with our exploration and production peers, are in the top 
quartile. We aim to achieve growth by continuing to build our existing businesses in 
Australia and by establishing new Australian and international activities which leverage 
the Company’s competitive strengths and capabilities.

We go about our business in a manner that enhances the quality of life by meeting society’s 
energy needs in ways that make us proud. As we pursue the creation of outstanding growth 
and shareholder wealth, we hold to the fundamental values of the Company which guide the 
way we work together and engage with our stakeholders – care and respect, integrity and 
trust, initiative and accountability, creativity and enterprise and working together.

We place the highest importance on caring for the health and safety of our people and the 
environment in which we operate.

The NWS Venture’s North Rankin A platform is located 130 km north west of Dampier, Western Australia.
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2003 was an important year for Woodside with considerable 
progress made in developing and shaping the Company to 
meet its growth aspirations.

Achievements
Shorter term performance has been a key objective for the 
Company in 2003. A program of production optimisation 
was implemented with the new objective of making 
2003/2004 the low point in production levels. At the same 
time an increase of three million barrels of oil equivalent in 
forecast 2003 production was made. In combination with the 
cost reduction achievements of the previously announced 
Profitability Enhancement Program, the Company has 
established a strong foundation for its growth strategy.

Significant progress in the Company’s development 
projects was achieved during the year. A record number of 
projects will be considered for final investment decisions 
during 2004. These key projects are expected to provide 
the planned-for growth in production levels in 2005 and 
beyond and will considerably broaden the Company’s 
production and revenue base.

In addition, exploration success in the Gulf of Mexico, 
Mauritania and the Enfield area in Australia has provided 
the Company with further growth opportunities for the 
longer-term.

A major effort was made in establishing the Company’s 
interests in Africa. The Company acquired acreage in Kenya 
and Sierra Leone and signed an Exploration and Production 
Sharing Agreement in Libya, adding to the existing interests 
held in Mauritania, Algeria and the Canary Islands. In 
December, the Company announced it had increased its 
interest in the Mauritanian projects through the acquisition 
of Agip Mauritania B.V. This is a significant acquisition for 
the Company as the Mauritanian projects have demonstrated 
strong potential to be valuable production sources. Another 
milestone was achieved with the delivery of Woodside’s first 
overseas production revenue from its interest in the Ohanet 
operations in Algeria. 

Financial Results
Revenues in 2003 were $2,059.3 million ($2,240.6 million 
in 2002) with net operating cash flow of $1,202.9 million 
($1,206.9 million in 2002). The net profit after tax for the 
year was $526.7 million ($92.0 million loss in 2002 after 
significant items). Return on shareholders’ equity was 21.7% 
and the Company’s net debt at the end of 2003 was $891 
million. Gearing ended the year at 26.8% compared with 
35.5% in 2002. Woodside will pay a final dividend of 25 cents 
per share (fully franked) on 26 March 2004 to those holding 

shares on 5 March 2004. Together with the fully franked 
interim dividend of 21 cents per share paid to shareholders 
in September 2003, the total dividends for the year were 
46 cents per share (fully franked).

Governance
During the year, the Company undertook a review of its 
corporate governance practices. The review established 
that Woodside already substantially complied with the 
Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best 
Practice Recommendations released in March 2003 by the 
Australian Stock Exchange. The Company has also taken the 
opportunity to expand and improve a number of its existing 
policies and practices.

During the year, Mr John Akehurst left the Company after a 
successful seven-year career as Chief Executive Officer and 
Managing Director. I would like to thank Mr Akehurst on 
behalf of shareholders and Directors for his valuable and 
major contribution to the development of the Company.

Mr Keith Spence was appointed Acting Chief Executive 
Officer from 1 September 2003 and will continue in that 
role until 5 April 2004. I wish to thank Mr Spence for the 
admirable manner in which he has led the Company in this 
interim period. 

On 17 February 2004 the Board announced the appointment 
of Mr Donald Voelte as Managing Director and Chief Executive 
Officer commencing 5 April 2004. The Board also announced 
the appointment of Mr Keith Spence as Chief Operating Officer.

Mr Voelte has extensive global experience in the oil and gas 
industry having held senior positions in Mobil Corporation 
and Atlantic Richfield Company. I will say more about 
Mr Voelte at the Annual General Meeting at which time 
shareholders will have the opportunity to meet Mr Voelte.

Mr Roger Vines retired from the Board in June and I would 
like to thank him for his valued contribution to Woodside. 

I thank the Company’s management, employees and 
contractors for their dedication, contributions and efforts 
during the year, in particular, for the ongoing focus 
and commitment to improvement in health, safety and 
environmental performance.

Charles Goode, AC
Chairman

18 February 2004

Chairman’s Overview
Charles Goode, AC
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Shareholders will be aware that I was appointed as Acting 
Chief Executive Officer by the Board in September and 
I am pleased to report to the shareholders on the year ended 
31 December 2003.

Strategic Objective
The past year has been a successful period for Woodside. 
In line with the Company’s strategic objective to deliver 
top quartile total shareholder returns as an exploration and 
production focused company, 2003 was a year of shaping up 
for growth. 2004 is a year for commitment to growth as key 
projects are progressed to the point of investment decision.

Three Horizons to Growth
In delivering on our strategic objectives, the Company views 
and manages the business by three horizons.

Horizon 1  –  Building our Existing Business

Horizon 2  –  Driving our Discoveries to Value

Horizon 3  –  Creating New Business

In Horizon 1, in 2003, Woodside lifted operational 
performance to surpass production targets. This was achieved 
by an infill well at Legendre, production optimisation and 
pursuing operational excellence. The NWS Venture had 
outstanding production performance during 2003. Legendre 
and Laminaria also delivered strong operational performance.

Building our existing business and leveraging off our 
competitive strengths is evident with the LNG expansion 
project which is progressing on schedule while planning 
continues for a fifth LNG processing train. 

The Company focused on cost savings under the 
Profitability Enhancement Program to deliver operating cost 
savings to Woodside of approximately $60 million between 
2003 and 2005. Savings targets for 2003 were achieved, and 
further savings and initiatives for 2004 and beyond have 
been embedded into the business budgets and plans.

Within Horizon 2, Mutineer-Exeter was approved for planned 
start-up in 2005. Significant progress was made in moving a 
number of projects towards project approval in 2004, including 
Enfield, Thylacine-Geographe, Blacktip and Chinguetti. Key 
contracts were awarded by the Enfield oil project to meet the 
first oil target in the fourth quarter of 2006.

Successes within Horizon 3 were realised with oil discoveries 
at Stybarrow near Enfield in Australia, Tiof and Tiof-West in 
Mauritania and Neptune-5 in the Gulf of Mexico. In January 
2004, further success was realised with a gas discovery 
at Midway in the Gulf of Mexico. Exploration is balanced 
between low-risk investments in proven areas and low-cost 

entries into higher-risk, potentially higher-reward frontier 
deep water acreage. Woodside increased its existing interests 
in the Blacktip gas project in the Australian portfolio and 
in Mauritania in Africa. Also within the Australian portfolio, 
the Company acquired an interest in WA-255-P, prior to the 
Stybarrow oil discovery being made.

Work continued on capturing markets for the proposed 
production gas hubs to be established in the Browse and 
Sunrise projects.

An important element of Horizon 3 is the Company’s 
acquisition capabilities. Although Woodside has been able to 
deliver growth through exploration success, it is recognised 
that value-adding acquisitions which leverage off Woodside’s 
skills base and operating experience should support the 
growth objective. Recognising that acquisitions bring 
different challenges and risks, Woodside adopts a disciplined 
portfolio approach in evaluating all investment opportunities 
to ensure sound and robust decisions are made. These 
principles were demonstrated in 2003 with acquisitions 
completed in Mauritania and the Blacktip project in northern 
Australia, and some proposals that received close analysis 
but were not taken further.

During 2004, the Company will focus on improving safety 
performance as it is disappointing to report no significant 
improvement in safety performance for 2003.

Future Outlook – Commitment to Growth
In demonstrating our commitment to growth, Woodside 
looks to build balanced growth across the three horizons 
in our three focus regions. Woodside’s proven track record 
shows the Company has the capacity to deliver on this 
commitment with its capable people and competitive 
and financial strengths.

In conclusion, I would like to recognise the commitment 
and support during the year from the Board, the leadership 
team and the Company’s dedicated team of people. The year 
ahead will be marked by Woodside’s 50th anniversary and a 
year of continued development and growth.

Keith Spence
Acting Chief Executive Officer

18 February 2004

Chief Executive Officer’s Report
Keith Spence



Performance Summary

The NWS Venture’s North Rankin A platform.
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Results at a Glance

2003 2002 Change

Total Recordable Case Frequency (per million hours worked) 5.9 6.6 -10.6%

Production (million barrels of oil equivalent) 58.9 64.2 -8.3%

Probable Reserves (million barrels of oil equivalent) 1,303.6 1,304.1 0.0%

Reserves Replacement Ratio (%) (three-year average) 158.1 186.8 -15.4%

Finding Cost (A$ per barrel of oil equivalent) (three-year average) 2.06 1.37 50.4%

Revenue ($ million) 2,059.3 2,240.6 -8.1%

Net Profit After Tax ($ million) (before significant items) 526.7 657.7 -19.9%

Earnings per Share (cents) (before significant items) 79.0 98.6 -19.9%

Operating Cash Flow ($ million) 1,202.9 1,206.9 -0.3%

Return on Average Capital Employed (%) (before significant items) 14.9 16.5 -9.7%

Dividends per Share (cents) 46 62 -25.8%

Payout Ratio (%) (before significant items) 58.2 62.8 -7.3%

Gearing (%) 26.8 35.5 -24.5%

Further details on the Company’s performance are published in the Ten-Year Comparative Data Summary on page 59 of this Report.

Financial ratio calculations are detailed in the Glossary on page 60 of this Report.
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Australia and the Timor Sea

2003 Key Achievements 2004 Key Objectives Future Outlook

North West Shelf Venture

•  Delivered 1,500th LNG cargo to Japanese customers

•   Delivered first LNG cargo under new term 
contract to The Republic of Korea

•   Seven million hours worked without a lost time injury 
on the LNG Train 4 project

•   Strong operational performance with record 
production, including domestic gas and LNG 
production records and record 139 LNG cargoes

•   Maximise production and further reduce unit 
operating costs

•   Further improvement in safety performance

•   Commissioning of second trunkline

•   LNG Train 4 comes on-stream

•  Delivery of ninth LNG ship

•  Progress towards LNG Train 5 project approval

•   Finalise the interpretation of the Demeter 3-D survey

•   Pursue further LNG marketing opportunities

•   Grow the NWS Venture reserves base through 
exploration

•   Sustain Cossack Pioneer oil production

•   China LNG supply planned to commence in 2006

•  Fifth LNG Train

•  Grow domestic gas business

Laminaria and Corallina

•   Produced 150 millionth barrel of oil in November

•   Achieved 12 months lost time injury free

•  14% operating cost reduction

•   Outstanding oil uptime availability of 99%

•   Bring Corallina-2 sidetrack online in first quarter

•   Evaluate further infill well opportunities

•   Continued focus on operation availability and costs

Legendre

•   Successful completion of North 4-H infill well

•   Achieved two years lost time injury free

•   Evaluate further infill well opportunities •   Continued focus on operation availability and costs

Enfield Area

•  Purchased 50% of WA-255-P

•  Stybarrow oil discovery

•  Plan to drill Stybarrow-3 appraisal well

•  Further exploration drilling

•   Resolve need for second oil hub in the area

•   Potential to commercialise Vincent field based on 
results of technical work

Enfield Oil Project

•  Awarded FPSO hull contract 

•   Front-end engineering design progressed

•  Project approval in first quarter •   Plan for expected start-up in fourth quarter 2006

Mutineer-Exeter Oil Project

•  Project approval in October •  Development drilling to commence in first quarter •  Plan for expected start-up in mid-2005

Browse Basin

•  Retention leases granted

•   Browse identified as credible domestic gas and 
LNG development 

•   Assessment of development options

•   Progress assessment of LNG and domestic gas 
market opportunities

•  First gas technically possible from 2012

Bonaparte Basin – Blacktip Gas Project

•   Acquisition of interests held by Shell Development 
(Australia) Pty Ltd.

•   Heads of Agreement signed with Alcan Gove 
Pty Limited

•   Complete preferred development concept design

•   Project approval in fourth quarter

•   Pursuit of tie-back opportunities to planned infrastructure

•   Pursuit of additional market opportunities

•  First gas to Alcan expected in 2007

Otway Basin

•   Thylacine-Geographe Gas Project

    •   Joint venture agreement finalised for unitised 
development

    •   Agreement with TXU Electricity Ltd. for sale of 
Woodside volumes

    •   Concept selection finalised and development 
site secured

•   Awarded prospective new acreage – 
VIC/P37(v) and T34/P

•   Thylacine-Geographe environmental, field development 
plan and project approvals planned for second quarter

•  Thylacine-Geographe first gas expected in mid-2006

•   Pursue growth from new discoveries and 
processing other gas

Business Summary
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Australia and the Timor Sea (continued)

2003 Key Achievements 2004 Key Objectives Future Outlook

Gippsland Basin

•   Submitted application for renewal of retention lease •   Assessment of development options •  First gas from Kipper technically possible in 2009

Timor Sea – Greater Sunrise

•  Timor Sea Treaty ratified

•  Sunrise International Unitisation Agreement signed

•   Environmental approval for development of 

Greater Sunrise

•  LNG marketing under way

•   Secure foundation LNG customers in Asia and/or 

North American markets

•  Progress LNG development concept

•   Governments’ ratification of International 

Unitisation Agreement

•  First gas expected in 2009/10

Timor Sea – Kuda Tasi Jahal

•   Assessed results of appraisal well drilled in 

Kuda Tasi in November

•   Assess commerciality of the wider region •   Identify appraisal and exploration prospects to 

augment Kuda Tasi Jahal reserves

Africa

2003 Key Achievements 2004 Key Objectives Future Outlook

Algeria

•   Ohanet Operations

    •   Completion of initial field development – 

28 new wells, 15 re-completions

    •  First export in October and overseas revenue

•  Block 401d

    •   Completion of 3-D seismic acquisition and processing

    •  Interpretation of 3-D seismic

•  Optimise performance to deliver maximum return

•  Maintain safety performance

•   Drill two exploration wells to test prospectivity prior 

to partial relinquishment

•  Drill four development wells in 2007

•   Maintain performance for eight to 12-year project life

•   Partial acreage relinquishment and commencement 

of second exploration period in 2005

Mauritania

•   Successful appraisal and production test of 

Chinguetti reservoir

•   Increased interest from 35% to 53.846% in 

Areas A and B

•   Chinguetti FPSO tender in progress

•   Tiof oil discovery and successful Tiof-West 

step-out exploration

•  Declaration of Chinguetti commerciality

•   Chinguetti project approval in mid-year

•   Fully appraise Tiof discovery and establish commerciality

•   Pursue exploration program to discover additional 

production opportunities

•   Expected start-up of Chinguetti in late 

2005/early 2006

•   On the basis of successful Tiof appraisal, Tiof may 

become a second production hub

•   Further exploration drilling to establish multiple 

production hubs in Mauritania and tie-backs for 

existing and future hubs

Libya

•   Completion of negotiations and finalisation of the 

Exploration and Production Sharing Agreement

•   Commenced extraction of the exploration data over 

contract areas

•   Establish office in Tripoli and commence geological 

and geophysical operations

•   Acquire 2-D and 3-D seismic data over the contract 

areas. Conduct a development feasibility study

•   Drill 13 wells as part of the minimum work obligation

Kenya

•  Interest acquired in seven blocks

•  Acquired 7,884 km 2-D seismic

•   Interpret seismic and make drill/drop decisions 

on individual blocks

•   3-D seismic in 2005 to be followed by potential 

drilling in 2006 

Sierra Leone

•   Interest acquired in two blocks 

(subject to government approval)

•   Acquire and interpret 3,400 km2 of 3-D seismic data •  Optional drilling in 2007

Canary Islands

•  Acquisition of 3,200 km2 of 3-D seismic data •  Participate in first exploration well •  Drill second exploration well

United States of America

2003 Key Achievements 2004 Key Objectives Future Outlook

Gulf of Mexico – Deepwater

•   Successful appraisal of deepwater Neptune discovery 

(Neptune-5)

•   Establish commerciality of developing the Neptune field 

•   Enhance regional understanding via seismic reprocessing 

and interpretation

•   Potential for first oil in 2006/07 should development 

proceed

•  Participation in future lease sales and drilling

Gulf of Mexico – Shelf

•   All three exploration wells drilled on Texas Shelf 

encountered gas, but in uncommercial quantities

•   Drill further four to five gas prospects on the Texas Shelf 

with potential for rapid monetisation

•  Evaluate Louisiana Shelf as near-term growth opportunity

•   Potential for cash flow from shelf gas production 

to support longer-term deepwater exploration 

campaign
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In Australia, Woodside produces LNG, crude oil, 
condensate, domestic gas and LPG from the NWS 
Venture’s fields in the Carnarvon Basin. Crude oil is also 
produced from the Laminaria and Corallina fields in the 
Timor Sea and the Legendre field located in the Carnarvon 
Basin. In Africa, Woodside receives LPG and condensate 
from the Ohanet operations in Algeria.

Woodside has significant ongoing projects that are 
focused on developing known reserves in areas where 
the Company has licences and permits, including 
increasing production from the NWS Venture to meet 
existing agreements to supply LNG to Japan, China and 
The Republic of Korea. The Company has significant oil 
and gas discoveries that are at various stages of appraisal, 
development or construction.

Woodside maintains an active exploration and appraisal 
program to secure reserves to underpin the Company’s 
future growth. This program is balanced between delivering 
high-margin oil near existing fields and infrastructure, 
discovering gas to supply future market opportunities 
and capturing international opportunities in both proven 
and frontier basins. Woodside has interests in Australia, 
the Timor Sea, Papua New Guinea, Africa and the United 
States of America. The Company aims to identify additional 
international focus regions to position itself for long-term 
growth in both oil and gas and to maintain a balanced 
portfolio in terms of risk versus reward.

As at 31 December 2003, Woodside had interests in 
242 titles covering a gross area of 328,656 km2 – 77 in 
the Australian and the Timor Sea portfolio and 165 in the 
international portfolio.

Woodside continuously high-grades its portfolio to assist 
in managing its exploration risk and expenditure profile. 
The Company actively divests its lowest performing 
acreage. During 2003, Woodside increased its interests in 
16 permits, relinquished 18 and divested nine. Seven new 
retention leases were awarded to enable the continued 
appraisal of existing discoveries. As part of its growth 
strategy, Woodside acquired interests in an additional 
83 titles – five in Australia, 15 in Africa and the remaining 
63 in the Gulf of Mexico.

Australia and the Timor Sea
Capitalising on Woodside’s Strength
focusing on optimising production efficiently and 
safely from the Company’s portfolio of producing 
assets in the Carnarvon Basin and the Timor Sea 
and developing key Australian and Timor Sea 
assets to enhance shareholder wealth

Woodside’s Quality Producing Assets 
delivering results in the Australian oil 
and gas portfolio

North West Shelf Venture
Woodside Interest NWS Venture                     16.67%

Domestic Gas Joint 
Venture                              50.00%

Operator Woodside

Produces LNG, domestic gas, condensate, 
crude oil and LPG

Location Offshore 130 km north of Karratha in 
north west Australia

Water Depth (approximate) 80 metres – Cossack
130 metres – North Rankin A and 
Goodwyn A

Business Review
Woodside’s oil and gas portfolio includes interests in Australia and the Timor Sea, Africa and 
the United States of America

The fourth LNG processing train, part of the NWS Venture’s LNG expansion project, is being constructed in Karratha, Western Australia. 
The project is on schedule for commissioning in 2004.

Production Performance 2003 2002

LNG

Total Production (Mt) 8.1 7.6

Woodside Production (Mt) 1.4 1.3

Domestic Gas

Total Production (Tj) 220,460 194,910

Woodside Production (Tj) 110,230 97,455

Condensate

Total Production (MMbbl) 39.6 41.1

Woodside Production (MMbbl) 9.8 10.0

Crude Oil

Total Production (MMbbl) 39.3 43.8

Woodside Production (MMbbl) 6.6 7.3

LPG

Total Production (t) 765,746 811,128

Woodside Production (t) 127,623 135,188

Woodside Petroleum Ltd.     |     2003 Concise Annual Report8



The NWS Venture is Australia’s largest resource development. 
The Venture produces gas through the North Rankin A and 
Goodwyn A production platforms and crude oil through the 
Cossack Pioneer Floating Production Storage and Offloading 
Facility (FPSO). Gas and condensate are transported 
ashore by a subsea trunkline to the NWS Venture’s onshore 
processing facilities located on the Burrup Peninsula, near 
Karratha. The onshore gas plant includes facilities for 
processing natural gas and associated liquids into LNG, 
condensate, domestic gas and LPG. 

Activities

The NWS Venture had outstanding production performance 
during 2003 with record annual production of 516,000 
boe/d, with an LNG annual production record of 22,280 t/d 
and a domestic gas annual production record of 604 Tj/d. 
The Venture delivered its 1,500th LNG cargo to Japan and 
delivered its first LNG cargo under a new seven-year term 
contract to The Republic of Korea. During the year, 139 
LNG cargoes were delivered (including two partial cargoes), 
exceeding the previous record by six cargoes. The Cossack 
Pioneer FPSO delivered its 400th cargo in November.

Key factors in this operational performance were the 
unprecedented high demand of both LNG and domestic gas 
and the high reliability of the offshore and onshore assets. 
The inter-field line shutdown (part of the Second Trunkline 
project) was completed ahead of schedule. This will result 
in a more flexible operating system and provides additional 
reliability for NWS Venture customers. 

Focus remained on safety performance with a notable 
achievement of seven million and two million hours worked 
without a lost time injury on the LNG Train 4 project and in 
Supply Operations, respectively. During the October shutdown, 
which covered the onshore gas plant, North Rankin A and 
Goodwyn A platforms and the Cossack Pioneer FPSO, no 
serious injuries were recorded. This was an excellent result for 
the largest and most complex shutdown ever undertaken by 
the NWS Venture. However, a disappointing safety performance 
was recorded on the NWS Venture’s Second Trunkline project 
and key learnings have been integrated into the planning for 
future NWS Venture projects.

Development

The expansion of the NWS Venture’s gas processing facilities 
was a major focus in 2003, with ongoing construction of a 
fourth LNG processing train, a subsea trunkline and an LNG 
ship. The expansion project will position the NWS Venture to 
satisfy growth in future contractual commitments. Train 4 will 
have a capacity to process 4.2 Mt/a of LNG and commissioning 
is scheduled for mid-2004. At the end of December, 
construction of Train 4 and the subsea trunkline was 87% and 
95% complete, respectively. Delivery of the NWS Venture’s new 
LNG ship is scheduled for the end of the first quarter in 2004 
and will bring the NWS Venture’s fleet to nine.

Ongoing infrastructure studies, including a fifth LNG train, 
continued in 2003. Studies were also pursued on the 
expansion of the domestic gas plant facilities to meet future 
demand growth from new and existing customers.

As part of China’s Guangdong LNG project, the NWS Venture 
participants and CNOOC Limited (a listed subsidiary of China 
National Offshore Oil Corporation) formalised agreements 
in May that provide for CNOOC’s subsidiary CNOOC NWS 

Private Ltd. to acquire an approximate 5.3% interest in the 
NWS titles and to secure rights to use NWS infrastructure 
to process gas and associated liquids. CNOOC will hold a 
25% interest in the new joint venture that will be established 
within the overall NWS project to supply the Guangdong LNG 
project, and each of the existing NWS Venture participants 
will have a 12.5% share. Subject to anticipated completion 
of regulatory and other approvals, CNOOC will pay each of 
the current NWS Venture participants about US$58 million 
for interests in the NWS Venture titles. CNOOC will also pay 
a tariff to use NWS infrastructure to produce and process gas 
and associated liquids from its acquired gas resources.

Marketing

Woodside’s existing LNG production from the NWS Venture is 
sold to eight Japanese power and gas utility companies under 
long-term sales contracts. Further to these existing contracts, 
Woodside, along with the other NWS sellers, have signed 
eight new LNG sales contracts with existing and new Japanese 
customers. In addition, a sales and purchase agreement has 
been signed with China’s Guangdong LNG project and new 
contracts have also been signed with Korea Gas Corporation 
and Shell Eastern LNG. The additional sales equate to 
approximately 180 million tonnes of LNG over these contracts’ 
duration, with the first LNG being delivered in 2003.

The NWS Venture continues to market in Japan, The Republic 
of Korea and China, whilst developing opportunities in new 
markets such as the United States of America.

Sales of domestic gas are mostly under long-term take-or-
pay contracts with the NWS sellers supplying some 65% of 
Western Australia’s annual domestic gas requirements. The 
NWS sellers were active in 2003 in providing competitively 
priced gas opportunities for existing customers and 
gas-related projects looking to locate in Western Australia.

Woodside’s share of LPG production was sold into Japan 
under a contract which was extended to the end of 2004. 

During the year, the main market for NWS condensate was 
Asia. The NWS Venture’s crude oil was sold primarily on a spot 
basis, with approximately 30% of sales to the domestic market 
and the balance exported to China and South East Asia.

Laminaria and Corallina 
Permit AC/L5

Woodside Interest Laminaria 44.92%**

Corallina 50.00%

Operator

Produces Crude oil

Location Offshore in the Timor Sea approximately 
550 km north west of Darwin

Water Depth (approximate) 340 metres

Production Start November 1999

Production Performance 2003 2002

Total Production (MMbbl) 17.4 31.7

Woodside Production (MMbbl) 8.4 15.2

** Interests on a post-unitisation basis, that is, after agreeing to pool
Woodside’s interest with other field owners and to exploit the field 
as a single venture.

Woodside with 50% ownership of 
the Northern Endeavour FPSO
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From production commencement in 1999, the 150 millionth 
barrel was produced in November. Both fields are produced 
to the Northern Endeavour, one of the largest FPSOs in the 
world with a cargo capacity of 1.4 MMbbl. 

Activities

Operational performance achieved an oil uptime of 99% in 
2003. Operating costs were down from $42 million in 2002 
to $36 million in 2003 (operator spend). Further operating 
savings are expected to drive the annual operating cost to 
$30 million by the end of 2005.

The Northern Endeavour had an impressive safety record. 
Highlights included achieving 12 months free of lost time 
injury during the year and no high potential incidents or 
reportable environmental incidents. Average oil-in-water 
discharge concentration was also significantly below target.

Development

During December, the existing Corallina-2 well was 
sidetracked to a horizontal well. Woodside’s share of the 
drilling program cost was $11.4 million. Woodside will 
continue to look for further infill opportunities during 2004.

Marketing

Laminaria crude oil is sought by refiners and petrochemical 
producers in the region. Woodside’s 2003 entitlement was 
exported mainly to Asia on a spot basis, after the conclusion 
of a term arrangement in May.

Legendre
Permit WA-20-L

Woodside Interest 45.94%

Operator Woodside

Produces Crude oil

Location Offshore 100 km north of 
Dampier, Western Australia

Water Depth (approximate) 50 metres

Production Start May 2001

Production Performance 2003 2002

Total Production (MMbbl) 10.1 11.3

Woodside Production (MMbbl) 4.6 5.2

The Legendre North and South fields are produced via the 
Ocean Legend Production Facility and the Karratha Spirit Oil 
Storage and Offloading tanker, both of which operate under 
service agreements. 

Activities

Legendre’s operational performance improved during 
the year with the successful drilling and completion, in 
late June, of the Legendre North 4-H infill well. This well 
became the fifth horizontal producer and, when coupled 
with ongoing gas compression optimisation work, led to the 
achievement of record facility production rates. Woodside’s 
share of the drilling program cost was $11 million, which 
also included a workover of the North 3-H well. In line with 
expectations, production from Legendre is now in natural 
decline post the boost gained from the North 4-H infill well.

Legendre’s health, safety and environmental performance 
included the achievement of two years free of lost time injury 
during the year with no adverse environmental impact. 

Development

Currently under consideration is a sidetrack of the South 2-H 
production well and a further infill well. Decisions on these 
will be made early in 2004.

Marketing

Woodside sold its 2003 Legendre oil entitlement on a 
spot basis. Approximately 25% of sales were to Australian 
refineries with the balance exported to The Republic of 
Korea, China and South East Asia.

Developing Strong Growth
and Future Wealth
by investing in exploration and development 

opportunities in Australia and the Timor Sea

The Australian exploration program aims to optimise 
the value of Woodside’s mature Australian business by 
delivering profitable development opportunities. As at 
31 December 2003, the Australian and the Timor Sea 
portfolio had interests in 62 exploration permits and 
retention leases and 15 production licences covering a 
gross area of 185,277 km2. During 2003, Woodside spent 
$91 million on Australian exploration. The Company 
drilled 15 exploration and appraisal wells in Australian 
acreage resulting in one commercial oil discovery, 
Stybarrow, which was successfully appraised during 
the year. Five wells encountered hydrocarbons that are 
currently considered to be sub-commercial. Woodside’s 
2004 domestic exploration program has a budget of 
$62 million and includes at least five exploration and 
appraisal wells in Australian acreage.

Enfield Area
The Enfield oil field is located within WA-271-P which 
is 100% owned by Woodside. The Enfield area also 
includes the Vincent, Stybarrow and Laverda oil fields. 
The Vincent field straddles the WA-271-P and WA-155-P 
permit boundary. No unitisation of this field has yet taken 
place. The Stybarrow field is located in WA-255-P in which 
Woodside holds a 50% interest. The Laverda field is located 
in WA-271-P.

Enfield Oil Project

Permit WA-271-P

Woodside Interest 100.00%

Operator Woodside

Location Offshore approximately 130 km 

west of Onslow, Western Australia

Water Depth (approximate) 600 metres

Planned Project Approval First quarter 2004 with first oil 

planned for fourth quarter 2006

Estimated Capital Expenditure $1.5 billion
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Approval for the Enfield oil project is planned for the first 
quarter in 2004. The project will use an FPSO with storage 
capacity of approximately 900,000 bbl of oil, a production 
rate at a peak of approximately 100,000 bbl/d and provision 
for additional riser capacity to provide the opportunity 
to tie-back other fields in the immediate area. In July, a 
contract was signed with Samsung Heavy Industries Co Ltd 
for construction of the FPSO hull. Other key contracts for 
the engineering, procurement and construction management 
services for the FPSO and the design of the turret mooring 
system supply were awarded along with a smaller contract 
for design verification services. Front-end engineering design 
is well advanced with completion scheduled for early 2004. 
Woodside obtained environmental approval for the project 
from Environment Australia in July. The project has an 
expected production life of approximately 12 years. 

Vincent
The Vincent field was discovered in 1998. Work to date has 
made significant improvements to the development concept 
and costs. Commercial alignment with the WA-155-P joint 
venture will be required in order to progress the project.

Laverda
The results of the Laverda-2 appraisal well in late 2002, and 
the Skiddaw discovery in WA-255-P in May, were evaluated 
during the year. Development options are currently under 
review.

Stybarrow 
Woodside acquired a 50% non-operating interest in 
WA-255-P in February and participated in the drilling of four 
wells. The first, Stybarrow-1, intersected oil in February. In 
June, the appraisal well, Stybarrow-2, eliminated the possible 
presence of a gas cap. A second appraisal well is planned 
for early 2004 in order to confirm the oil-water contact. 
Development studies are under way.

Enfield Area Exploration
The fourth well drilled in WA-255-P was the Eskdale-1 
exploration well. It encountered 17 metres of residual 
oil within high quality Macedon Sandstone. Further 
exploration drilling may be undertaken on the Eskdale 
prospect in 2004 to test for live oil up-dip from Eskdale-1. 
Further exploration wells may be drilled in WA-271-P and 
WA-255-P during 2004 to assess the potential for a second 
production facility in the area.

Mutineer-Exeter Oil Project
Permit WA-191-P

Woodside Interest 8.20%

Operator Santos Ltd

Location Offshore approximately 
150 km north of Dampier, 
Western Australia

Water Depth (approximate) 165 metres

Project Approval October 2003 with first oil 
planned for mid-2005

Estimated Capital Expenditure $51.8 million (Woodside share)

The development plan includes a contracted FPSO with a 
production rate of approximately 100,000 bbl/d and first 
oil production expected in mid-2005. The project has an 
expected production life of seven years. Seven horizontal 
development wells will be drilled in 2004 – five at Mutineer 
and two at Exeter.

Carnarvon Basin Exploration
During 2003, Woodside operated three wells in the inboard 
Carnarvon region. The Egret-3 well was drilled in WA-10-R to 
appraise the Egret oil field and then deepened to explore for 
a secondary gas objective. The well successfully appraised 
the Egret oil field, in which Woodside holds 33.33% equity, 
but encountered only sub-commercial gas in the deeper 
exploration objective. A final decision on the development 
of the field awaits interpretation of new 3-D seismic data. 
The Carteret-1 well was drilled in WA-4-L to appraise the 
southern extent of the Exeter oil field. It encountered a 
2.5 metre oil column in the Angel Formation and hence 
only a minor extension of the oil field into WA-4-L. Nickol-1 
was drilled in WA-1-P and encountered only minor 
hydrocarbon shows. 

Acquisition of the Demeter 3-D seismic survey, covering 
most of the NWS Venture acreage, was completed in 
February 2004. Processing of the high resolution data is 
under way and interpretation during 2004 should provide 
prospects for drilling in 2005.

Three exploration wells were drilled in the outboard 
Carnarvon region in 2003. Whitetail-1 was drilled as a 
gas exploration well in WA-296-P but encountered no 
hydrocarbons. Guilford-1 was plugged and abandoned 
after encountering a low permeability 30 metre gas column 
in WA-269-P. This permit is currently being renewed for 
a further five-year exploration term. The Tigger-1 oil 
exploration well drilled in WA-248-P was dry.

Browse Basin – Scott Reef, Brecknock and 
Brecknock South Gas Fields
Permits TR/5, R/2, WA-28-R, WA-29-R, 

WA-30-R, WA-31-R, WA-32-R

Woodside Interest 50.00% TR/5, R/2, WA-30-R, 
WA-31-R, WA-32-R 
25.00% WA-28-R, WA-29-R 

Operator Woodside

Location Offshore 425 km north of Broome, 
Western Australia

Water Depth (approximate) 400 to 800 metres

Retention leases over the three gas fields (Scott Reef, 
Brecknock and Brecknock South) were issued in 
December. Woodside considers the development of 
the Browse Basin fields to be commercially viable. The 
development timing depends on continued growth in 
LNG demand and domestic gas market opportunities. The 
development opportunities include onshore LNG, floating 
LNG and pipeline gas, with start-up possible from 2012 
depending on market opportunities.
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Bonaparte Basin
Blacktip Gas Project

Permits WA-279-P, WA-313-P, NT/P57

Woodside Interest 53.85%, 50.00%, 66.67%, respectively

Operator Woodside

Location Offshore approximately 250 km 
south west of Darwin in northern 
Australia

Water Depth (approximate) 50 metres

Planned Project Approval Fourth quarter 2004 with first gas 
planned for 2007

Estimated Capital Expenditure $265 million (Woodside share)

The Blacktip gas field is a series of stacked reservoirs of dry 
gas in exploration permit WA-279-P which was discovered in 
2001. In February, Woodside and Eni Australia B.V. acquired 
the 35% interest previously held by Shell Development 
(Australia) Pty Ltd., which increased Woodside’s interest to 
53.85%.

In June, a Heads of Agreement for the supply of natural gas 
from the Blacktip gas field to Alcan Gove Pty Limited’s (Alcan) 
alumina refinery and bauxite mining plant at Gove in the 
Northern Territory was signed. The Agreement proposes gas 
supply of 40 PJ/a over 20 years from 2007 and is conditional 
on project approval, all regulatory approvals and satisfactory 
arrangements for the construction and operation of the 940 km 
onshore gas pipeline from the Joseph Bonaparte Gulf to 
Alcan’s plant at Gove. 

Blacktip project approval is expected in the fourth quarter of 
2004. The key objectives in 2004 are the pursuit of additional 
gas field tie-back opportunities to the planned Blacktip 
infrastructure, the completion of the basic engineering 
design for the preferred development concept and securing 
additional customers.

Bonaparte Basin Exploration
Woodside operated two exploration wells in the Bonaparte 
region during 2003. Shakespeare-1 was drilled in NT/P57 
and penetrated approximately 50 metres of residual oil. 
Weasel-1 was drilled in WA-279-P and encountered oil 
shows. Both wells were plugged and abandoned.

Great Australian Bight Exploration
Permits EPP 28 to 31

Woodside Interest 40.00%

Operator Woodside

Location Offshore in the Duntroon sub-basin 
adjacent to the Great Australian Bight

Water Depth (approximate) 100 to 4,000 metres

The Gnarlyknots-1A commitment well was drilled in permit 
EPP 29 to test the hydrocarbon potential of this frontier 
deepwater offshore basin. The well reached the primary 
objective but was plugged and abandoned before reaching 
a deeper secondary objective due to prolonged adverse 
weather conditions.

Otway Basin 
Thylacine-Geographe Gas Fields

Permits T/30P, VIC/P43 

Woodside Interest 51.55%

Operator Woodside

Location Offshore 70 km – Thylacine
Offshore 55 km – Geographe 
south of Port Campbell in 
south east Australia

Water Depth (approximate) 100 metres – Thylacine

85 metres – Geographe

Planned Project Approval Second quarter 2004 with first gas 
expected in mid-2006

Estimated Capital Expenditure $387 million (Woodside share)

In August 2002, a Heads of Agreement was signed with 
TXU Electricity Ltd. for the sale of Woodside’s share of 
Thylacine and Geographe gas. The Agreement is subject 
to joint venture and government approvals for the 
development of the gas fields. The project is anticipated to 
have a production rate of 60 PJ/a and is expected to supply 
up to 10% of south east Australia’s current gas demand 
from 2006 for over ten years. 

In February, the equities in the two joint ventures 
covering the Thylacine and Geographe gas fields were 
aligned enabling the joint development and sharing of 

The NWS Venture’s Cossack Pioneer FPSO.

Crude oil is processed onboard the FPSO and is then loaded onto crude 
oil tankers for transport to customers. Gas is sent by a subsea pipeline to 
the North Rankin A platform, and then to onshore facilities via the main 
subsea trunkline.
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infrastructure. In June, the joint venture participants 
committed $26 million in design engineering and 
project planning following the selection of the preferred 
development concept. A supplementary $12 million was 
committed for geotechnical surveys in September. Approval 
for the project is planned for the second quarter of 2004. 
The initial total cost of the Otway gas project is estimated 
at approximately $750 million, with further phases of 
expenditure over the life of the project. 

In late 2003, tenders were issued for all major components 
of the Otway gas project initial phase. This included the 
offshore platform, offshore and onshore gas pipelines and 
the onshore gas plant. All government and environmental 
approvals are proceeding as planned and the award of the 
production licence and project approval is anticipated in 
the second quarter of 2004.

Otway Basin Exploration
During 2003, Woodside and its joint venture partners 
were awarded two new exploration permits in the Otway 
Basin, VIC/P37(v) and T/34P, strengthening Woodside’s 
position to supply the south east Australian gas market. 
The first phase of exploration in permit VIC/P37(v) was 
successfully completed with acquisition of the Antares 
3-D seismic survey.

Gippsland Basin
Kipper, Basker, Manta and Gummy Gas Fields

Permits VIC/RL2, 6, 9, 10

Woodside Interest 30.00% VIC/RL2
100.00% VIC/RL6, 9, 10

Operator Esso Australia Resources Ltd – 
VIC RL/2
Woodside – VIC/RL6, 9, 10

Location Offshore approximately 65 km from the 
Victorian coast in south east Australia

Water Depth (approximate) 150 to 300 metres

The VIC/RL2 permit includes the Kipper gas field which 
could be developed via integration with Esso/BHP 
Billiton’s Gippsland Basin Joint Venture Facilities or as 
a stand-alone development. In June, the joint venture 
submitted an application for the renewal of the retention 
lease. As at the end of December, no response to this 
application had been received.

Development studies have increased Woodside’s 
understanding of the Basker, Manta and Gummy oil and gas  
fields, revealing a more complex distribution of reserves than 
previously carried. The preferred development option is via 
tie-back to any future Kipper development.

Gippsland Basin Exploration
The Scallop-1 exploration well, located in VIC/RL2, 
confirmed the presence of a gross gas column of 35 metres 
in the primary target and a number of thin oil zones totalling 
an additional ten metres of gross oil pay. As the resulting 
volumes are insufficient to support commercial production, 
the well was plugged and abandoned.

Timor Sea
Greater Sunrise Gas Fields

Permits NT/RL2, NT/P55, JPDA 03-19, 
JPDA 03-20

Woodside Interest 33.44% (unitised basis)

Operator Woodside

Location Offshore 450 km north west of Darwin 
and 150 km south of Timor-Leste

Water Depth (approximate) 75 to 750 metres

The Greater Sunrise gas fields consist of the Sunrise gas 
field and the adjacent Troubadour gas field. The Sunrise 
participants are reviewing two LNG development options 
– a development option that would send gas by pipeline to 
an onshore LNG plant and a floating LNG (FLNG) facility. 
A decision on the preferred LNG option is expected to be 
made in 2004. Securing LNG customers remains the key to 
enable Sunrise to proceed to the next stage of development. 
Marketing of Sunrise LNG to customers in Asia and the North 
American West Coast is under way. 

In May, the Northern Territory Government and the 
Commonwealth Government gave environmental approval 
for the Sunrise upstream development. In April, the Timor 
Sea Treaty between Timor-Leste and Australia came into 
force establishing the Joint Petroleum Development Area 
(JPDA). This enabled the Governments to jointly issue 
two new Production Sharing Contracts, JPDA 03-19 and 
JPDA 03-20, covering the portion of Sunrise within the 
JPDA. The Governments of Timor-Leste and Australia 
signed the International Unitisation Agreement (IUA) for 
Greater Sunrise in March, establishing the legal framework 
for development of the Greater Sunrise gas fields. The 
IUA will enter into force upon ratification by Australia 
and Timor-Leste.

Kuda Tasi and Jahal Oil Fields

Permit JPDA 03-01

Woodside Interest 40.00%

Operator Woodside

Location Offshore in the Timor Sea approximately 
20 km east of Laminaria

Water Depth (approximate) 400 metres

These fields were initially planned to be developed via 
subsea wells connected to the nearby Northern Endeavour 
in AC/L5 but, in absence of a satisfactory agreement with 
the owners of that facility, a stand-alone development 
has been pursued based on subsea wells connected to a 
contracted FPSO. An appraisal well drilled on the Kuda 
Tasi field during the fourth quarter of 2003 was aimed at 
reducing reserves uncertainty however results indicated 
that reserves are insufficient to support a stand-alone 
development. The focus during 2004 will be on identifying 
sufficient additional exploration or appraisal potential to 
allow development to proceed.

13



Metasource 
Woodside’s wholly owned subsidiary, Metasource Pty. Ltd. 
(Metasource), maintains a portfolio of investments in 
sustainable and renewable energy technologies. Refer to the 
following table for investments held by Metasource.

Investment Portfolio Equity

Geodynamics Limited 18.28%

Ceramic Fuel Cells Limited 44.00%

Ocean Power Technology Incorporated 2.98%

Ocean Power Technologies (Australasia) Pty Ltd 11.76%

A key role of Metasource is the assessment and 
management of business risks and opportunities arising 
from global and national measures to reduce the emission 
of gases implicated in global warming – known as 
“greenhouse gases’’. Metasource represents Woodside on 
a number of industry and government forums that are 
influencing and formulating policy on greenhouse gas 
emissions. An inventory of company-wide greenhouse gas 
emissions is maintained by Metasource.

Metasource continues to explore business opportunities that 
add value to Woodside’s core business, and provide options 
in delivering the most efficient and effective greenhouse 
emission management approach.

International Interests – Diversifying 
the Portfolio
Woodside’s growth strategy is aimed at 

maximising opportunities to create outstanding 

growth and value for the Company 

Woodside has targeted a number of international 
areas on the basis of their potential for success and 
the diversification and balance which they add to the 
exploration, development and production portfolio. As 
at 31 December 2003, the international portfolio had 
interests in 165 exploration blocks – 34 in Africa, 129 in 
the Gulf of Mexico in the United States of America and 
two in Papua New Guinea – covering a gross area of 
143,379 km2. During 2003, Woodside spent $176 million 
on international exploration. The Company drilled four 
exploration and appraisal wells in Africa resulting in the 
Tiof and Tiof-West oil discoveries and a successful 
appraisal well at Chinguetti. Woodside also participated in 
six wells in the Gulf of Mexico, including the successful 
Neptune-5 appraisal well. A seventh well in the Gulf 
of Mexico, Midway, was operational as at year end. 
The 2004 international exploration program has a budget 
of $186 million and includes at least eight exploration 
and appraisal wells.

Africa
selected as an international focus region based 

on its prospectivity, accessibility and its fit 

with the Company’s portfolio

Algeria
Ohanet Operations 

Woodside Interest 15.00%

Operator BHP Billiton

Produces LPG and condensate**

Location Onshore Illizi Basin in southern 
Algeria

Production Start October 2003

Production Performance 2003 2002

LPG

Total Production (t) 45,710 -

Woodside Production (t) 6,857 -

Condensate

Total Production (MMbbl) 0.8 -

Woodside Production (MMbbl) 0.1 -

** Ohanet operations is a wet gas project. Sonatrach receives all the dry 
gas and Woodside and its partners receive a share of the LPG and 
condensate associated with that gas.

Woodside’s interest in the Ohanet operations in Algeria generated the 
Company’s first revenue from international operations in 2003.

14 Woodside Petroleum Ltd.     |     2003 Concise Annual Report



The start-up of the Ohanet operations was a major milestone 
in Woodside’s international growth strategy – delivering the 
first revenue from non-Australian oil and gas operations. 
Woodside’s interest in the project was officially recognised 
in April after initial approval was granted in 2002. The 
project is run under a Risk Service Contract with Sonatrach, 
the Algerian National Oil Company. Under the terms of 
the contract, the project participants receive a fixed rate of 
return based on the sale of LPG and condensate over eight 
to 12 years. Woodside’s investment in the project, which was 
delivered on time and within budget, was US$154 million.

The initial phase of field development, involving the drilling 
of 28 new wells and 15 re-completions of existing production 
wells, was completed in 2003. A further four development 
wells are planned for 2007. Commissioning of the Ohanet 
gas processing facility continued throughout November, with 
plateau production forecast for January 2004.

Block 401d Exploration

Block Block 401d

Woodside Interest 35.00%

Operator Repsol YPF

Location Onshore Berkine Basin, eastern 
Algeria

The acquisition of 647 km2 of 3-D seismic in Block 401d 
was completed in March. Following processing and 
interpretation of the 3-D seismic, two exploration wells are 
planned to be drilled in 2004.

Mauritania
Production Sharing Contracts Areas A, B, C2, C6

Woodside Interest 35.00%** Areas A, B 

48.00% Area C2

37.58% Area C6

Operator Woodside

Location Offshore Mauritania

Water Depth (approximate) 0 to 2,200 metres

** Woodside acquired additional interests in Areas A and B from 
Agip Mauritania B.V. to increase its interest from 35% to 53.846% in 
January 2004.

Chinguetti Oil Project

Production Sharing Contract Block 4 in Area B

Woodside Interest 35.00%**

Operator Woodside

Location Offshore 80 km from the 

Mauritania coast

Water Depth (approximate) 800 metres

Planned Project Approval Mid-2004 with first oil planned for 

late 2005/early 2006

** Woodside acquired additional interests in Areas A and B from 
Agip Mauritania B.V. to increase its interest from 35% to 53.846% in 
January 2004.

Following the initial Chinguetti-1 oil discovery in 2001 
and two successful appraisal wells in 2002, the Chinguetti 
4-5 appraisal/early development well was drilled late in 
2003. The well intersected a gross hydrocarbon interval of 
approximately 100 metres of which approximately 38 metres 
were net pay. The well was production tested and flowed 
at a maximum rate of 15,680 bbl/d with an average rate of 
approximately 11,500 bbl/d during the main flow period. 

Development work on the Chinguetti field is continuing and 
Woodside made a formal declaration of commerciality to the 
Mauritanian Government in January 2004. Project approval 
is planned for mid-2004. A development utilising an FPSO, 
operated under a service agreement, is expected to be in 
production by late 2005 to early 2006. The FPSO tender 
process is in progress with bids currently being evaluated. 
The preliminary development concept involves a permanently 
turret-moored FPSO with a likely oil production capacity of 
75,000 bbl/d and a minimum 1.1 MMbbl storage. The potential 
subsea development is planned to involve six production 
wells, four water injection wells and one gas re-injection well.

Mauritanian Exploration
Two exploration wells were drilled during 2003. The Tiof 
well, targeting Miocene Sandstones, was drilled during 
November and encountered a 49 metre gas column 
overlying a 38.5 metre oil column. The subsequent Tiof-
West step-out exploration well intersected a gas column of 
approximately four metres overlying a gross oil column of 
approximately 122 metres. Water bearing sands have been 
confirmed below the hydrocarbon bearing interval. Further 
appraisal drilling during 2004 will assess the connectivity and 
quality of the reservoir section.

The Pouné exploration well targeted deeper Cretaceous 
Sandstones but encountered no significant hydrocarbons. 
The well was plugged and abandoned.

The Jack Ryan and West Navigator drill ships have been used by 
Woodside for exploration and appraisal drilling in Mauritania.
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During the year, the Tichit 2-D seismic survey was 
completed in Areas A, B and C6. The survey covered 
the western, deepwater parts of the Production Sharing 
Contracts with the intention of defining areas for possible 
future 3-D seismic acquisition.

In December, an agreement was signed to acquire Agip 
Mauritania B.V. As a result, in January 2004 Woodside increased 
its interest in Areas A and B. Additionally, Woodside agreed 
to on-sell to the remaining joint venturers their pro-rata share 
of the 35% interest acquired in each contract area. Woodside’s 
equity in both contract areas increased from 35% to 53.846%, 
with each joint venturer taking up its pro-rata share.

Libya Exploration
Blocks S64, S50, S11, S16, S42, M15

Woodside Interest 45.00%

Operator Woodside

Location Onshore Sirte Basin in northern 
Libya with M15 within the Murzuq 
Basin in west Libya

In November, Woodside signed an Exploration and 
Production Sharing Agreement (EPSA) with the Libyan 
National Oil Corporation. The agreement extends over 
30 years. The committed minimum exploration program 
includes acquisition of 6,500 km of 2-D and 400 km2 of 
3-D seismic data and drilling 13 wells. The program is to be 
carried out over an initial six-year exploration phase.

In addition, Woodside has negotiated a three-year feasibility 
study over an oil and gas field in the Murzuq Basin. 
This study includes an option to negotiate a commercial 
production agreement within a further three years. 

The first contract year will be dominated by data retrieval, 
copying and reprocessing of existing 2-D seismic. Seismic 
acquisition will be conducted during years two and three. 
Exploration drilling will occur in years three to six.

The cost of the joint venture’s contracted work program, for 
the initial six-year exploration phase, is over US$100 million 
with Woodside’s average yearly expenditure over this period 
expected to be approximately US$8 million.

Kenya Exploration
Blocks L5 to L11

Woodside Interest 40.00% L5, L7, L10, L11
50.00% L6, L8, L9

Operator Woodside

Location Offshore Kenya

Water Depth (approximate) 0 to 3,000 metres

Woodside operates all seven blocks which cover an 
area of 66,095 km2 and extend from onshore and coastal 
areas to water depths up to 3,000 metres. Woodside’s 
initial commitment under the farm-in agreements has 
been satisfied by the acquisition of 7,884 km of new 

2-D seismic data. During 2004, activity will focus on the 
interpretation of these new data. A decision will then be 
made on whether to enter the optional second exploration 
phase, which would require a commitment to exploration 
drilling in each of the blocks renewed.

Sierra Leone Exploration
Blocks SL6, SL7

Woodside Interest 50.00%

Operator Repsol YPF

Location Offshore Sierra Leone

Water Depth (approximate) 50 to 4,000 metres

In December, Woodside acquired a 50% interest in two 
exploration blocks from Repsol YPF covering an area of 
approximately 10,498 km2. The farm-in is subject to approval 
by the Sierra Leone Government. A 3,400 km2 3-D seismic 
program is in progress which will satisfy the current work 
obligations. The focus in 2004 will be on the processing and 
interpretation of the 3-D seismic data. A decision to enter an 
elective drilling phase must be made in 2007.

Canary Islands Exploration
Blocks Canarias-1 to 9

Woodside Interest 30.00%

Operator Repsol YPF

Location Offshore east of Canary Islands

Water Depth (approximate) 1,000 metres

Activities during the year focused on the acquisition and 
processing of 3,200 km2 of 3-D seismic data. Preliminary 
data have been received and evaluation is under way. At this 
stage, one exploration well is planned during 2004.
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United States of America
pursuing a balanced portfolio of deepwater and 
shelf opportunities in a stable, high-margin area

Neptune Field
Woodside has a 20% non-operating interest in the Neptune 
field in the Atwater Foldbelt region of the Central Gulf of 
Mexico. BHP Billiton is the operator.

Following the success of the Neptune-3 appraisal well in 2002, 
appraisal operations continued during 2003. The Neptune-4 
exploration/appraisal well was drilled to test the north west 
extent of the field but failed to encounter hydrocarbons. 
Subsequently, Neptune-5 was drilled with the objective of 
determining the down-dip extent of the primary Neptune oil 
accumulation. The well was successful and encountered a 
gross hydrocarbon column of approximately 1,200 feet 
(366 metres), with more than 500 feet (152 metres) of net 
oil pay – significantly greater pay than that penetrated by 
previous Neptune wells. Evaluation of the fluids indicated 
the presence of relatively good quality oil. Two successful 
sidetracks were drilled from Neptune-5. The first, sidetrack-1, 
further extended the known accumulation down flank and 
confirmed the oil-water contact. The second, sidetrack-2, 
defined the up-dip extent of good quality oil.

It is envisaged that a project team will be formed early in 2004 
to assess development options and the business case for a 
declaration of commerciality for the Neptune field. If deemed 
commercial, first production could occur in late 2006 to 2007.

Gulf of Mexico Exploration
During 2003, emphasis was placed on building a more 
balanced Gulf of Mexico business in the context of 
commodity type, time to production and potential for future 
growth. Woodside has therefore expanded its area of interest 
to include the Texas Shelf where discovery to production 
timeframes for gas are typically measured in months 
compared to years in the deepwater. At the end of 2003, 
Woodside’s portfolio had grown from 79 leases at the start 
of the year to 129 at year end.

A 47 lease farm-in with Pioneer Natural Resources 
(Pioneer) on the Texas Shelf, which was completed in 
January, provided much of the portfolio growth. Woodside 
and Pioneer have since drilled two deep gas prospects 
and one conventional shelf gas prospect during 2003. 

All wells encountered gas but in sub-commercial quantities.

In January 2004, a third well targeting deep gas on the Texas 
Shelf, Midway, encountered 30 feet (nine metres) of net 
gas pay. An additional 60 feet (18 metres) of gas bearing 
sands were encountered in three other intervals and require 
further evaluation. The well is expected to be tied back to an 
existing production platform in the Brazos Area Block A 39.

During 2004, the Company will evaluate other blocks 
covered by the leases to identify additional gas prospects 
for inclusion in future drilling programs.

A Well Participation Agreement was entered into with 
Conoco Inc. in November 2002 to participate in the drilling 
of the Voss Prospect exploration well in the deepwater Gulf 
of Mexico Keathley Canyon Block 511. Conoco Inc. was 
operator of the well which was spudded in September 2002 
and was plugged and abandoned in February. As a result of 
its participation in the well, Woodside earned a 15% interest 
in the six leases covering the Voss prospect.

At the 2003 Central and Western Lease sales Woodside 
successfully bid on two leases, one in deepwater and one on 
the Texas Shelf.

During the year, 12 low potential leases were relinquished.

A seismic vessel gathering data.
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Production Summary
focusing on optimising production by lifting 

production performance to create a rising 

profile from 2005 and beyond

Woodside’s total production for the year was 58.9 MMboe, 
a decrease of 8.3% from 64.2 MMboe in 2002. Production 
volumes in 2003 saw the expected decline in the NWS 
Venture, Legendre and Laminaria oil production. Production 
volumes for the year however were slightly higher than 
the revised target volume of 58 MMboe. Previously, 

Woodside had production targets at 55 MMboe for 2003, 

with decreasing production for 2004 and a production low 

point in 2005. With a focus on optimising production, a key 

objective was set to identify opportunities to increase short-

term production and achieve a rising production trend from 

2003/2004 onwards. This resulted in lifting 2003 targets by 

5.5% to 58 MMboe. The revised target was based on strong 

operational performance and contributions from several 

new initiatives.

Production commenced in October from the Ohanet 

operations in Algeria, with Woodside receiving its share of 

LPG and condensate from the operations.

The NWS Venture’s Goodwyn A platform.

Production Volumes Sales Volumes Sales Revenue ($ million)

 Woodside Share 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

LNG (Mt) 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2

Domestic Gas (Tj) 110,230 97,455 110,230 97,455

Condensate (MMbbl) 9.9 10.0 9.8 9.7 415.3 397.7

Oil (MMbbl)

     NWS Venture 6.6 7.3 6.4 7.1 287.0 296.4

     Legendre 4.6 5.2 4.8 5.1 204.3 208.5

     Laminaria 8.4 15.2 8.5 14.4 347.6 565.3

LPG (t) 134,480 135,188 134,680 127,372 56.7 58.6

TotalProductionVolume
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Sales Volume (%)

Domestic Gas 31%

Condensate 15%

Crude Oil 32%

LPG 2%
LNG 20%

Sales Volume by Product
59.0 MMboe

707.7 665.7

Sales Revenue by Product
$2,018.6 million

LPG 3%

LNG/Domestic Gas 35% Condensate 21%

Crude Oil 41%

Woodside Petroleum Ltd.     |     2003 Concise Annual Report18



Reserves Statement
a strong base of highly productive, 

long-life reserves

The following Reserves Statement and tables present a 
summary of the principal changes to Woodside’s Reserves 
and Scope for Recovery (SFR) volumes during 2003, and 
the resulting Reserves and SFR positions as at 31 December 
2003. The format of Woodside’s Reserves Statement has been 
revised this year to more concisely reflect the Company’s 
range of activities within Australia and internationally. 
Material changes to the Company’s Reserves and SFR, 
beyond normal forecast production, are now only reported 
by exception. Additional information on key assets is 
provided in other sections of this Report and the Company’s 
annual Reserves Statement news release.

Unless otherwise stated, all Reserves and SFR volumes are 
quoted as net Woodside share, and Probable Reserves are 
inclusive of Proved Reserves.

As a result of activities and studies undertaken during 
2003, Woodside’s hydrocarbon Reserves as at 31 December 
2003 have increased to 980.1 MMboe at the Proved level, 
but reduced slightly to 1,303.6 MMboe at the Probable 
level, with Reserves additions at the Probable level 
replacing slightly over 99% of Annual Production for the 
year. The replacement of production was primarily due 
to increased Reserves in the Wanaea, Cossack, Lambert-
Hermes and Enfield oil fields offshore Western Australia, 
and a new Reserves addition for the Chinguetti oil project 
offshore Mauritania, Africa. Woodside’s annual Reserves 
Replacement Ratio for 2003 was 99% and the three-year 
rolling average was 158%, both at the Probable level. The 
annual Reserves Replacement Ratio at the Proved level was 
105%. Woodside’s SFR volumes have decreased slightly 
from 2,875 to 2,866 MMboe at year end 2003, the major 
changes being the transfer of Chinguetti SFR volumes to 
Reserves, the removal of Banda oil SFR volumes and the 
addition of the Stybarrow and Skiddaw oil discoveries.

For the determination of Oil Reserves Woodside has 
continued to use a ten-year average crude price as this 
is considered to be more representative of longer-term 
price expectation and results in more realistic Oil Reserve 
estimates. Gas Reserve determination continues to be based 
on individual project contracts. The Ohanet operations 
in Algeria are governed by a Risk Service Contract under 
which Woodside does not have any share in the sales gas 

delivered but is entitled to cost recovery and a fixed return 
from the sale of gas-liquid by-products. Woodside has 
estimated Reserve volumes that reflect the economic value 
of this asset, using a ten-year average Condensate price 
and an LPG price consistent with other Woodside Reserves 
determinations. For the Chinguetti oil project in Mauritania, 
Woodside’s net share of Reserves has been determined in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the applicable 
Production Sharing Contract.

Australia
Within the NWS Venture there have been no material changes 
to Woodside’s share of Dry Gas and Condensate Reserves 
other than that due to production. Consequently Dry Gas 
Reserves are now 3,317 Bcf and 4,189 Bcf at the Proved and 
Probable levels respectively, whilst Condensate Reserves 
are now 92.7 MMbbl and 128.6 MMbbl at the Proved and 
Probable levels respectively. Better than expected production 
performance by the Wanaea, Cossack and Lambert-Hermes 
oil fields together with multi-disciplinary studies have resulted 
in NWS Venture Oil Reserves increasing to 21.4 MMbbl at 
the Proved level and 37.2 MMbbl at the Probable level. 
There have been no material changes in Woodside’s share of 
NWS Venture SFR volumes during the year. The previously 
announced agreement with CNOOC NWS Private Ltd. to 
acquire an approximate 5.3% interest in the NWS Venture titles 
and to secure rights to use NWS Venture infrastructure was 
not completed during 2003 and hence Woodside’s interests in 
the NWS Venture remained unchanged at year end.

Outside the NWS Venture, Woodside’s share of the 
combined Reserves of the Enfield and Vincent oil discoveries 
has increased to 171.5 MMbbl at the Proved level and 
225.1 MMbbl at the Probable level due to technical and 
commercial studies associated with the Enfield development. 
Woodside’s share of Proven and Probable Reserves 
attributable to the Mutineer-Exeter oil discovery have been 
reduced to 4.5 MMbbl and 8.3 MMbbl respectively following 
further appraisal drilling during 2003 (Carteret-1). Reserves 
associated with the Laminaria, Corallina and Legendre 
oil field developments all decreased largely in line with 
production. Dry Gas and Condensate Reserves associated 
with the Otway Basin development in south east Australia 
were increased slightly following further technical studies.

During 2003, SFR volumes were added for the Stybarrow 
and Skiddaw oil discoveries offshore Western Australia, 
whilst SFR for the Laverda discovery was reduced following 
appraisal drilling late in 2002 and during 2003. As a result of 
these changes the total SFR Oil volume for the Enfield Area, 
including Enfield and Vincent, is now 115.7 MMbbl. Sale of the 

Dry Gas 63%

Condensate 11%

Probable Reserves (MMboe)

Crude Oil 26%

Probable Reserves by Product
1,303.6 MMboe
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Company’s 30% interest in the Audacious oil discovery resulted 
in a SFR reduction of 6.0 MMbbl. Activities to commercialise the 
Sunrise and Troubadour, Scott Reef, Brecknock and Brecknock 
South gas discoveries continued during 2003, but by year end 
had not matured sufficiently to support Reserves additions or 
material changes to SFR volumes. During 2003 the acquisition 
of additional equity in the Blacktip gas discovery in northern 
Australia together with further technical studies resulted in 
Woodside’s share of the field’s SFR volumes increasing to 
500 Bcf of Dry Gas and 3.1 MMbbl of Condensate.

Africa
In Mauritania, multi-disciplinary studies associated with the 
Chinguetti oil field during 2003 resulted in additions to Oil 
Reserves of 24.7 MMbbl at the Proved level and 37.5 MMbbl 
at the Probable level, transferred from SFR. These Reserve 
additions are based on Woodside’s equity of 35% as at 
31 December 2003 and do not include volumes associated 
with the acquisition of additional equity announced by 
the Company in December as the transaction was not 
completed by year end. Furthermore, 19.6 MMbbl of Oil 
SFR previously reported attributable to the nearby Banda 
discovery have been revised to zero as a result of technical 
and commercial studies during 2003. Opportunities to 
commercialise substantial gas resources associated with the 
Banda discovery are currently in progress. No Reserves or 
SFR volumes are reported for the Tiof and Tiof-West oil 
discoveries as technical and commercial work to evaluate the 
recent drilling results were not completed by year end.

Reserves associated with the Ohanet operations, in Algeria, 
have been revised due to updated ten-year average product 
price assumptions, revised project cost estimates and the 
commencement of production in October. Consequently 
Reserves are now 15 Bcf of Dry Gas and 11.1 MMbbl of 
Condensate at both the Proved and Probable levels. As in 
previous years Ohanet LPG has been categorised as Dry Gas, 
consistent with the Woodside Dry Gas definition. This does not 
imply any Woodside interest in the Ohanet operations sales gas.

United States of America
No Reserves are currently reported for assets within 
the United States of America. However, as a result of 
the Neptune-5 appraisal well and further technical and 
commercial studies during 2003, Woodside’s share of SFR 
volumes for the Neptune oil discovery in the Gulf of Mexico 
have been increased to 25 Bcf of Dry Gas and 31.8 MMbbl 
of Oil. The Company is continuing with appraisal and 
development studies of the field during 2004.

1.  Definitions
“Condensate” is defined as “C5 plus” hydrocarbon components for 
NWS Venture and Otway Basin fields, but is sales product for the 
Ohanet operations.

“Dry Gas” is defined as “C4 minus” hydrocarbon components plus 
inerts. These volumes include LPG (propane and butane) Reserves. 

“Bcf” means billions (109) of standard cubic feet of gas.

“MMbbl” means millions (106) of standard barrels of oil, natural gas 
liquids and condensates.

“MMboe” means millions (106) of barrels of oil equivalent. In 
common with international practice, Dry Gas volumes are converted 
to oil equivalent volumes via a constant conversion factor, which 
for Woodside is 5,700 standard cubic feet of gas per 1 barrel of oil 
equivalent. Volumes of Oil and Condensate are both converted from 
MMbbl to MMboe on a 1:1 ratio.

“Reserves” are identified volumes that have been demonstrated 
to be producible from known resources in which the Company 
has a material interest from a given date forward, at commercial 
rates, under presently anticipated production methods, operating 
conditions, prices and costs. Woodside reports Reserves net of the 
gas required for processing and transportation to the customer (fuel 
and flare gas).

“Proved Reserves” are those Reserves that, to a high degree of 
certainty (90% confidence), are recoverable. There is relatively little 
risk associated with these Reserves. 

“Probable Reserves” are those Reserves which analysis of geological 
and engineering data suggests are more likely than not to be 
recoverable. There is at least a 50% probability that Reserves 
recovered will exceed Probable Reserves. Unless otherwise indicated, 
for the purposes of this Reserves Statement, Probable Reserves are 
inclusive of Proved Reserves.

“SFR” is the recovery estimate of any project for which implementation 
cannot be shown with sufficient confidence to be technically sound 
or commercially viable, but which could mature based on reasonable 
assumptions about the success of additional data gathering, improved 
reservoir management, a maturing technology from current research, 
relaxations in the market constraints and/or terms and conditions for 
implementing such a project.

“Annual Reserves Replacement Ratio” means Reserves change during 
the year, before the deduction of production, divided by production 
during the year. An Annual Reserves Replacement Ratio of 100% 
indicates full replacement of production by Reserve additions for that 
year. “Three-Year Reserves Replacement Ratio” means Reserves change 
over the prior three years, before the deduction of production for that 
period, divided by production during the same period.

“Annual Production” means the volumes of Dry Gas, Condensate 
and Oil (as defined above) produced during the year and converted 
to “MMboe” (as defined above) for the specific purpose of Reserves 
reconciliation and the calculation of Annual Reserves Replacement 
Ratios. The Reserves Statement Annual Production differs from 
production volumes reported in other sections of this Report due 
to differences in the sales product definitions and the “MMboe” 
conversion factors applied.

2.  Notes
Woodside’s share of Dry Gas Reserves for the NWS Venture is 
an estimate based on the hydrocarbon quantities required to be 
produced for Woodside’s domestic gas interest, currently 50%, and 
Woodside’s 16.7% LNG interest. Woodside’s exact share of domestic 
gas production depends on the volume sold and capacity delivered.

Woodside’s exact share of Condensate Reserves for the NWS Venture 
depends on the percentage of total production derived from domestic 
gas sales (Woodside’s interest currently 50%), LNG (Woodside’s interest 
16.7%) and Gas Recycling ventures (Woodside’s interest 16.7%).Renita Rehbock, Reservoir Engineer for the Reserves Reporting team.
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Hydrocarbon Reserves by Area
As at 31 December 2003

Woodside Share Proved Reserves Probable Reserves (including Proved)

Dry Gas Condensate Oil Total Dry Gas Condensate Oil Total

Bcf MMbbl MMbbl MMboe Bcf MMbbl MMbbl MMboe

Australia

Greater North West Shelf 3,317 92.7 199.9 874.5 4,189 128.6 276.1 1,139.6

Northern Australia 0 0.0 11.8 11.8 0 0.0 27.9 27.9

South East Australia 294 3.8 0.0 55.4 450 6.0 0.0 84.9

Africa 15 11.1 24.7 38.4 15 11.1 37.5 51.2

Total 3,626 107.6 236.4 980.1 4,654 145.7 341.5 1,303.6

Reconciliation of Hydrocarbon Reserves
From 31 December 2002 to 31 December 2003

Woodside Share Proved Reserves Probable Reserves (including Proved)

Dry Gas Condensate Oil Total Dry Gas Condensate Oil Total

Bcf MMbbl MMbbl MMboe Bcf MMbbl MMbbl MMboe

Estimated Reserves Year End 2002 3,810 117.0 191.7 977.1 4,840 154.9 300.1 1,304.1

Improved Recovery 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Revisions of Previous Estimates -8 -0.1 39.6 38.1 -10 0.1 23.5 21.8

Extensions and Discoveries 0 0.0 24.7 24.7 0 0.0 37.5 37.5

Acquisitions and Divestments 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Annual Production -176 -9.3 -19.6 -59.8 -176 -9.3 -19.6 -59.8

Estimated Reserves Year End 2003 3,626 107.6 236.4 980.1 4,654 145.7 341.5 1,303.6

Annual Reserves Replacement Ratio -5% -1% 328% 105% -6% 1% 311% 99%

Reconciliation of SFR Volumes by Area
From 31 December 2002 to 31 December 2003

Woodside Share

Year End 
2002

Transfers to 
Reserves

Revisions Extensions & 
Discoveries

Acquisitions & 
Divestments

Year End 
2003

Australia       

Greater North West Shelf 204.6 0.0 -11.3 25.0 0.0 218.3

Northern Australia 2,471.2 0.0 -9.5 0.0 25.0 2,486.7

South East Australia 94.6 0.0 4.6 0.0 0.0 99.2

Papua New Guinea 29.1 0.0 -3.3 0.0 0.0 25.8

Africa 54.6 -35.0 -19.6 0.0 0.0 0.0

United States of America 21.1 0.0 15.1 0.0 0.0 36.2

Total 2,875.2 -35.0 -24.0 25.0 25.0 2,866.2

The information contained in this Reserves Statement has been compiled by Mr Roland Hamp, a full-time employee of the Company. Mr Hamp’s 
qualifications include a Master of Engineering (Petroleum Engineering) degree from Imperial College, University of London, England and more than 
16 years of relevant experience. Mr Hamp has consented in writing to the inclusion of this information in this Report.

MMboe
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Exploration and 
Production Interests
as at 31 December 2003

   
   

 

      

      

       

   

#     Awaiting government approval 
for renewal

##   Awaiting government approval 
for relinquishment

**   Woodside Operated

Woodside 
Interest (%)

NWS Venture 

WA-1-L 16.66**

WA-23-L 16.66**

WA-24-L 16.66**

WA-2-L 16.66**

WA-3-L 16.66**

WA-4-L (1) & (2) 16.66**

WA-5-L 16.66**

WA-6-L (1) & (2) 16.66**

WA-7-R 16.66**

WA-9-R 16.66**

WA-9-L 16.66**

WA-10-R 16.66**

WA-11-L 16.66**

WA-16-L 16.66**

AC/L5 50.00**

AC/P8 85.00**

JPDA 03-01 40.00**

Papua New 
Guinea

PPL 218 50.00

PRL 10 40.45

Other Interests

WA-1-P (1), (2), 
(3) & (4)

45.94**

WA-205-P S 5.00

WA-208-P 44.03**

WA-248-P (1) 
& (2)

45.00**

WA-254-P (1) 24.38

WA-254-P (2) 17.06

WA-254-P (3) 
& (4)

24.38

WA-269-P      80.00**

WA-275-P 25.00

WA-280-P      35.00**

WA-28-P (1), 
(2), (3) & (4)

16.66**

WA-293-P 80.00**

WA-294-P 16.00**

WA-296-P 14.33**

WA-297-P 16.00**

WA-347-P 100.00**

WA-348-P 100.00**

WA-350-P 100.00**

EPP 28 to 31 40.00**

Otway Basin

T/30P 51.55**

T/34P 62.50**

VIC/P37(v) 62.50

VIC/P43 51.55**

VIC/RL 2 30.00

VIC/RL 6, 9, 10 100.00**

JPDA 03-19 27.6666**

JPDA 03-20 26.6666**

NT/P55 26.6666**

NT/RL2 35.00**

Woodside Operator (Production Licence)                Woodside Operator (Permit)                Woodside Non-Operator Interests                Relinquished/Sold Permit

Australia and the Timor Sea

Legendre

WA-20-L 45.94**

Enfield Area

WA-255-P (1) 
& (2)

50.00

WA-271-P 100.00**

WA-191-P (1) 
& (2)

8.20

Browse Basin

R/2 50.00**

TR/5 50.00**

WA-28-R to 
29-R

25.00**

WA-30-R to 
32-R

50.00**

WA-279-P 53.85**

WA-313-P 50.00**

NT/P57 66.67**

Mutineer-Exeter

Bonaparte Basin

Great Australian Bight

Timor Sea – 
Greater Sunrise

Timor Sea – Kuda Tasi
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Laminaria and Corallina

Gippsland Basin

#

##



Africa

Woodside Operator (Production Licence)                Woodside Operator (Permit)                Woodside Non-Operator Interests                Relinquished/Sold Permit

Woodside 
Interest (%)

Canary Islands

CANARIAS-1 to 9 (4) 30.00

Mauritania

AREA A (1) (5) 35.00**

AREA B (1) (5) 35.00**

AREA C2 (1) 48.00**

AREA C6 (1) 37.58**

Kenya

BLOCK L-5, L-7, 
L-10, L-11

(1) 40.00**

BLOCK L-6, L-8, L-9 (1) 50.00**

Libya

M-15 (2) 45.00**

S-11 (2) 45.00**

S-16 (2) 45.00**

S-42 (2) 45.00**

S-50 (2) 45.00**

S-64 (2) 45.00**

Algeria

ALG-401d (1) 35.00

ASKARENE GUELTA (3) 15.00

DIMETA WEST (3) 15.00

OHANET NORTH (3) 15.00

OHANET SOUTH (3) 15.00

Sierra Leone

SL-6, SL 7 (4) 50.00

Notes
(1)  Production Sharing Contract
(2)   Exploration and Production Sharing 

Agreement
(3)  Risk Service Contract
(4)  Exploration Permit
(5)   Woodside acquired additional 

interests in Areas A and B from 
Agip Mauritania B.V. to increase its 
interest from 35% to 53.846% in 
January 2004. 

**   Woodside Operated

Note
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Woodside 
Interest (%)

AC117 16.25

AC445 45.00

AC489 45.00

AC490 45.00

AC533 45.00

AC534 45.00

AC73 16.25

AC946 100.00**

AT279 100.00**

AT370 25.00

AT371 25.00

AT40 33.33

AT445 16.67

AT446 16.67

AT488 16.67

AT489 16.67

AT490 16.67

AT491 16.67

AT534 16.67

AT575 20.00

AT618 20.00

AT95 40.00

BA A10 50.00

BA A39 50.00

BA A48 50.00

BA A69 50.00

BA A7 50.00

BA342 50.00

BA378 50.00

BA397 50.00

BA430 50.00

BA478 50.00

BA490 50.00

GA A120 50.00

GA A121 50.00

GA A176 50.00

GA A177 50.00

GA A178 50.00

GA A38 50.00

GA A39 50.00

GA A79 50.00

GA A89 50.00

GA A92 50.00

GA A93 50.00

GA316 50.00

GA324 50.00

GA327 50.00

GA353 50.00

GA355 50.00

GA356 50.00

GA379 50.00

GA380 50.00

GA464 50.00

GA465 50.00

GB563 100.00**

GB818 33.33

GB860 33.33

GB861 33.33

GB875 33.33

GB905 33.33

GB906 33.33

GB935 12.50

GB936 12.50

GB937 12.50

GB943 33.33

GB944 33.33

GB950 33.33

GB979 12.50

GB995 33.33

GC246 33.33

GC283 12.50

GC284 12.50

GC328 12.50

GC388 25.00

GC410 12.50

GC688 25.00

HI A81 50.00

HI A82 50.00

KC286 10.56

KC287 16.25

KC301 100.00**

KC302 100.00**

KC387 100.00**

KC388 100.00**

KC431 100.00**

KC434 100.00**

KC467 15.00

KC477 100.00**

KC478 100.00**

KC511 15.00

KC512 15.00

KC555 15.00

KC598 15.00

KC599 15.00

MC1008 33.33

MC294 20.00

MC3308 12.50

MC339 12.50

MC447 25.00

MC449 25.00

MC554 2.75

MC555 2.75

MC598 2.75

MC599 2.75

MC902 100.00**

MC993 45.00

MI A9 50.00

MU A121 50.00

MU A28 50.00

MU A51 37.50

MU A80 50.00

MU A81 50.00

MU A82 50.00

MU752 50.00

MU761 50.00

MU768 50.00

MU769 50.00

PN968 50.00

PN977 50.00

PN978 50.00

WR121 6.78

WR122 6.78

WR123 33.33

WR342 33.33

WR37 33.33

WR81 33.33

Neptune

AT573 20.00

AT574 20.00

AT617 20.00

**Woodside Operated

Woodside Operator (Production Licence)                Woodside Operator (Permit)                Woodside Non-Operator Interests                Relinquished/Sold Permit
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Exploration and 
Production Interests
as at 31 December 2003

  
  
United States of America



Financial Risk Management
Woodside’s management of financial risk is aimed at 
ensuring net cash flows are sufficient to: 

• meet its financial commitments as and when they fall due;

• maintain the capacity to fund its forecast development 
program and exploration strategy;

• continue to pay dividends; and

• sustain financial ratios which maintain an investment 
grade credit rating.

Woodside continually monitors and tests its forecast financial 
position against these criteria and will undertake hedging 
activity only when necessary to ensure these objectives will 
be met. Hedging activity is governed by Board approved 
treasury policies and processes.

No new long-term oil price or exchange rate hedges were 
undertaken in 2003. 

Financial Instruments
Oil Price Hedging
As at 31 December 2003, 2.7 MMboe had been previously 
hedged by way of floating-to-fixed price oil swaps with 
varying maturities out to 2005 at a weighted average hedge 
rate of US$21.09/bbl. This equated to 4.9% of identified 
barrels of oil equivalent exposure (that is, forecast sales 
exposed to the oil price adjusted for the impact of secondary 
taxes) over the period, and approximately 2.4% of forecast 
sales from 2004 to 2005.

As at year end, the mark-to-market valuation of the existing 
oil price hedging was an unrealised liability of $31.5 million 
($94.4 million in 2002). The opportunity cost of oil hedging 
(after tax) included in the Full Financial Report for 2003 is 
$77.1 million ($145.4 million in 2002).

Currency Hedging
As at 31 December 2003, US$189.7 million had been 
previously hedged against specific future expenditure 
commitments by way of forward exchange and currency 
option contracts with varying maturities out to three years at 
a weighted average hedge rate of US$0.5496.

As at year end, the mark-to-market valuation of the existing 
currency hedging was an unrealised asset of $67.3 million 
($21.8 million liability in 2002). The opportunity gain of 
currency hedging (after tax) included in the Full Financial 
Report for 2003 is $13.9 million ($16.6 million cost in 2002).

Interest Rate Management
Woodside manages its United States interest rate exposure 
by maintaining a balance between fixed and floating rate 
debt within its portfolio. This exposure is managed by 
undertaking fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps.

As at 31 December 2003, US$425 million fixed-to-floating 
interest rate swaps were outstanding with maturities out 
to 2013. During November 2003, fixed-to-floating interest 
rate swaps of US$250 million were placed over the 
US$250 million bond issue.

Debt Portfolio
Woodside maintains a diversified portfolio of available 
debt facilities with the specific objectives of spreading its 
source of borrowings, maintaining a spread of maturities 
and achieving a balance between fixed and floating 
interest rates. As at 31 December 2003, total debt was 
US$800 million. 

During November 2003, Woodside issued a ten-year US$250 
million bond into the United States of America bond market 
with a fixed interest rate of 5% per annum. The net proceeds 
of the bond issuance were used to repay existing debt.

Sensitivity Analysis
The table below shows the impact of an increase in 
realised oil price, exchange rate and United States interest 
rate on the Company’s 2003 net profit after tax together 
with the forecast impact for 2004. The impact is reversed 
for a decrease in the listed items.

($m) ($m)

Increase 2004** 2003

Realised Oil Price US$1/bbl 23 24

Exchange Rate (A$/US$) 1 cent (12) (12)

US Interest Rate 1% (5) (5)

** Forecast

Governance and Assurance
The Financial Risk Management function operates under 
a set of strict policies and procedures. Monthly treasury 
reports are presented to the Board detailing open positions, 
any new transactions and any breaches of policy. The Board 
Audit & Risk Committee oversees both the internal and 
external audit reviews of the treasury function. External 
treasury specialists are also engaged on a periodic basis to 
ensure global treasury best practice is followed.

Financial Risk Management 
identifying and managing financial risks to assist the Company to meet its strategic objectives

Left to right – Abigail Pring, Leonard Lau and Anna Sudlow are part of Woodside’s Treasury team.
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Woodside believes that all industry-related injuries and 
diseases are preventable and aspires to develop hydrocarbon 
resources in ways that meet the needs of the present, without 
compromising the environment for future generations. 

A key strategy for managing the health and safety of 
employees and contractors, as well as the environment 
in which Woodside operates, is to openly communicate 
performance in these areas with the workforce, government 
and the wider community. Woodside has commenced work 
on a public report which will include a detailed review of 
health, safety and environmental performance. Commencing 
from 2004, the report will be published on an annual basis.

Health
In 2003, the Company implemented a Fitness for Work 
policy. The policy deals with an individual’s medical 
and physical capacity to perform work duties as well 
as potential impairment. 

Woodside achieved a 73% improvement in Total Recordable 
Occupational Illness Frequency (TROIF) during 2003. This 
significant improvement was achieved through increasing 
the awareness of health risks at work and targeted programs 
in areas of concern.

Safety
It is disappointing to report no significant improvement 
in Total Recordable Case Frequency (TRCF) or Lost Time 
Injury Frequency (LTIF) in 2003. Regrettably, 90 people 
were injured, with 27 injuries requiring those affected to 
take time off work. 

Efforts in 2004 will focus on significantly reducing the 
number of injuries with greater emphasis on accountability 
and safety leadership.

Environment
During 2003, Woodside’s Environmental Standards and 
Aspirations were implemented with standards designed 

to place Woodside in the top quartile of environmental 
performance for the industry. In the second half of the year, 
the North Rankin A facility joined the Goodwyn A facility in 
achieving ISO14001 certification, an international standard 
for environmental management. 

Regrettably, there were 48 reportable environmental 
incidents in 2003. Of these, 42 were temporary oil-in-
water exceedences from offshore facilities, with negligible 
persistent environmental consequences. There were also 
six reportable oil/fuel spills, all less than six cubic metres 
in volume. These incidents were due to process upsets, 
shutdowns and start-ups.

This year Woodside was awarded a certificate of merit 
from Western Australia’s Department of Industry and 
Resources for consultation and environmental assessment 
for the proposed WA-271-P field development. Woodside 
was also acknowledged by Australian Petroleum 
Production and Exploration Association Limited for its 
innovative wellhead removal program which eliminated 
the use of explosives, resulting in greater preservation 
of the surrounding seabed. The annual Woodside 
Environmental Award went to the NWS Venture’s Onshore 
Gas Plant for the flare reduction campaign. 

Security and Emergency Response
Woodside continued to develop competence across 
the organisation in emergency preparedness. Over 
40 emergency response exercises were conducted during 
the year, including a major exercise that involved 
over 200 internal and external participants. Woodside 
also participated in the development of National 
Emergency Response Competency Standards for the 
hydrocarbon industry.

The current global security climate has resulted in the 
development of company-wide Security Standards and 
Guidelines and a five-year Security Strategy. Woodside 
maintains a close relationship with government bodies 
on security issues.

Health, Safety, Environment and Security
recognising continuous improvement in HSE performance is fundamental to Woodside’s business success
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Woodside’s drive to develop a high performance culture 
and to align corporate and employee performance 
continued throughout the year. To this end, there was 
significant focus on leadership and talent development, 
a continuation of the performance leadership program, 
a redesign of performance based pay and a review of 
performance management processes. 

At the year end, Woodside’s workforce comprised 
2,219 people.

Leadership and Talent
Woodside continued to focus on the development of 
management and leadership capability in 2003. As part of 
this focus, an executive competency audit was undertaken 
in March. The results of the audit were used to harness areas 
of strength and identify key development opportunities 
necessary to deliver the business strategy.

In developing Woodside’s future leaders, succession 
management at the leadership level and in key discipline 
areas was a priority.

High Performance Culture
Performance Leadership Program
During the year, Woodside continued to embed the 
principles of performance leadership through a series 
of initiatives. Leadership in Action workshops were 
held for senior managers to link the principles of the 
leadership program to current business opportunities. 
Leadership workshops continued for those who have 
not previously attended.

Performance Based Pay
The short-term variable component of employee remuneration 
was redesigned to align employee reward to corporate, 
business unit, team and individual performance and 
outcomes. Employees will be rewarded under this system for 
the first time in April 2004, based on their 2003 performance. 
This incentive was designed to provide a strong link between 
employees and Woodside’s business performance.

Profitability Enhancement Program
During 2003 Woodside initiated a cost efficiency campaign, 
known as the Profitability Enhancement Program, aiming 
to realise a 25% to 30% improvement in cost efficiency 
throughout the organisation. Through the implementation 
of various initiatives, Woodside reduced its workforce in 
2003 by 100 permanent employees, with expectations that 
a further 36 reductions will occur in 2004.

Diversity
Attracting and retaining people with the skills, experience 
and motivation to contribute to the Company’s business 
success continued to be a focus. In 2003, Woodside 
undertook a review into the existence of and possible 
impact of the “glass ceiling” on women in Woodside. 
Results from the review provided valuable insight into the 
needs and development opportunities for women. While 
Woodside has made progress in this area in recent years, 
additional strategies have been developed to assist progress 
in maximising Woodside’s talent base. In 2004, a similar 
review will be undertaken regarding ethnicity with particular 
attention on the attraction, retention and development of 
indigenous employees.

Work/life integration practices continued to meet and balance 
the needs of employees and the business during 2003. 

Employee Relations
Woodside’s employee relations strategies continued 
to deliver value to the business in an environment of 
increasing activity and commercial rationalisation. This year 
was characterised by a high level of construction activity 
and focus on the LNG expansion project. Significantly, 
Woodside’s strategies were able to settle issues favourably 
and with minimal business interruption.

People and Culture 
creating a high performance culture aligned with Woodside’s strategic objectives

Alan Hill (left) and Bill Bell, Production Technicians, onboard the Northern Endeavour. The Northern Endeavour is 
one of the largest FPSOs in the world and produces crude oil from the Laminaria and Corallina fields.
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Making a difference to the development of young people is 
the key focus of Woodside’s community support program. 
Partnerships with community organisations provide services 
and opportunities for young people in a wide range of areas. 
During 2003, Woodside committed more than $2.3 million 
in support of these organisations. Key initiatives during the 
year included:

• Woodside’s successful partnership with Surf Lifesaving 
WA, which was expanded to support an innovative 
program to co-ordinate and quality-assure training and 
development for 10,000 young members. 

• Partnerships with Conservation Volunteers Australia and 
Earthwatch, which enabled disadvantaged young people 
to participate in practical and educational programs.

• A commitment of $200,000 per year (2003 to 2007) to 
assist the Royal Flying Doctor Service purchase a new 
aircraft.

• Funding for a road safety education trailer to be used by 
Western Australia’s Office of Road Safety to promote safe 
road use and safe pedestrian behaviour to young people.

Karratha
Community partners included Karratha Youth Theatre, 
recognised for its innovative and energetic theatrical 
programs which have involved many local at-risk youth, 
and the 2 Hot Youth Festival, which enables children of all 
ages to experience different forms of art during a two week 
holiday program each year. Woodside also partnered with 
the Police and Citizens Youth Club in Roebourne, which 
organises many after-school activities and weekend social 
programs for young people.

Other partners included Pilbara Homecare, Karratha Autumn 
Club, Pilbara Wildlife Carers Association and West Pilbara 
Volunteer Sea Search and Rescue.

Victoria
An upgrade to Timboon Kindergarten facilities was well 
received by the community. A partnership with Arena, 
a children’s theatre company, provided participation 
opportunities for the children of Woodside staff and 
customers, as well as schools in Port Campbell and 
regional Victoria. 

Northern Territory
Community partnerships in the Northern Territory included 
Asthma Swim NT, Merrepen Arts Festival, Rugby NT Youth 
Development Program, Taminmin High School, Young 
Achiever Awards and NT Minerals Council Petroleum 
Education Program.

International Partnerships
A partnership to supply clean water and help build a 
medical clinic at a community centre in the village of 
Eraulo in Timor-Leste has been established. The centre 
is being constructed by the community and will be used 
for education, training, community gatherings and small 
business development. The centre is pivotal to the 
aim of Eraulo to become a sustainable community. 
Research is under way to identify and develop further 
international partnerships which align with and support 
Woodside’s operations.

Awards
During 2003, Woodside received the following recognition 
for its community partnerships:

• Winner of a Prime Minister’s Community Business 
Partnership Award for the Northern Territory Woodside / 
Asthma Swim partnership;

• Australian Business Arts Foundation (AbaF) Awards 
– Winner in the Open category with the WA Museum 
and Finalist in the Community category with Awesome 
Children’s Festival;

• Winner of The Orchestras of Australia Network (TOAN) 
Enlightened Support Award; and

• Finalist in the 2003 Western Australian State Arts 
Sponsorship Awards.

Employee Involvement
Each community partnership involves “Employee Champions” 
who contribute their expertise, passion and leadership. Teams 
of Woodside employees continued to provide volunteer 
support to a diverse range of community groups.

Community Partnerships
partnering with the community to make a difference to the future of our society

In association with Gymnastics WA, Joost Konert, Justin Gibney, Jamie Gibney and Luke Gentili (left to right) 
are combining fun with learning new skills at the Woodside Family Fun Day.
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Keith Spence – Acting Chief Executive Officer
Keith joined Woodside in 1998 and was previously Director 
Oil Business Unit with more than 25 years experience in 
the oil and gas industry. Prior to joining Woodside, Keith 
was on secondment from Shell and was responsible for the 
NWS Venture’s exploration activities. Keith was appointed as 
Acting Chief Executive Officer in September 2003. Age: 50 

Key Accountability – To lead and direct the achievement of 
Woodside’s short, medium and longer-term business objectives, 
as agreed with the Board and within the ruling statutory, 
legislative and ethical frameworks, and to provide for the 
longer-term protection and growth of shareholder investment.

David Martin – General Counsel
David joined Woodside in September 2001 after 12 years 
working in London, Singapore and Hong Kong, including 
nine years as a partner in an international law firm. He was 
appointed General Counsel in June 2003. Age: 42

Key Accountability – To manage the legal aspects of all 
Woodside activities, including Company Secretariat.

David Maxwell – Director Gas Business Unit
David joined Woodside in 1996 and was previously General 
Manager Commercial NWS Venture. He was appointed as 
Director of the Gas Business Unit in June 2002. Age: 50

Key Accountability – To maximise the value of Woodside’s 
gas business and develop new gas projects and 
opportunities. David is also responsible for Woodside’s gas 
strategy, LNG and gas marketing and the management of 
Woodside’s investment in the NWS Venture.

Ian Jackson – Director Africa Business Unit
Ian joined Woodside in August 2001 and was previously 
General Manager NWS Interests and General Manager 
Corporate Affairs. Prior to joining Woodside, Ian held a 
number of senior management roles with BP p.l.c. Age: 44

Key Accountability – To deliver Woodside’s development 
and growth and manage operations in Africa in a safe and 
sustainable manner, and in a way that enhances Woodside’s 
corporate reputation. 

Doug Bailey – Chief Financial Officer
Doug joined Woodside in April 2002 as Chief Financial 
Officer after a 20-year career with Ashton Mining Limited. 
Age: 50

Key Accountability – To manage Woodside’s financial 
position, its internal and external reporting and financial risk 
management. More recently, he became responsible for the 
Company’s strategy, performance and planning.

Steve Ollerearnshaw – Chief Executive Officer NWS Ventures
Steve was seconded by Shell to Woodside as Chief Executive 
Officer of the NWS Venture in November 2002 after over 
20 years in various senior executive management positions 
with Shell International. Age: 54

Key Accountability – To improve the business performance 
of the existing NWS Venture’s assets and implement 
profitable growth of the NWS Venture’s business. Steve 
is also accountable for governance of health, safety and 
environmental performance throughout Woodside. 

Agu Kantsler – Director New Ventures
Agu was seconded by Shell to Woodside in mid-1995 as 
General Manager and then Director of the New Ventures 
Business Unit, following 15 years of international 
exploration activity with Shell. In 2000, Agu formally joined 
Woodside as a permanent employee. Age: 52

Key Accountability – To deliver new development and 
production opportunities in the Company’s focus regions 
of Australia, Africa and the United States of America via 
successful, low-cost near-field and greenfield exploration. 
Agu is also accountable for providing world-class sub-surface 
technical services to all other business units. 

Andrew Maiden – Director Shared Services
Andrew joined Woodside in 2000 as the Business Services 
Manager for Information Technology Production Services. 
He was appointed Director of the Shared Services Business 
Unit in December 2001. Age: 45

Key Accountability – To provide market-competitive 
services to meet internal business needs. This Business Unit 
manages cross-company processes and provides services 
for supply chain, logistics, office facilities and information 
technology. Andrew is also responsible for governance of 
security management. 

Duncan Clegg – Acting Director Oil Business Unit
Duncan joined Woodside in 1997 and was previously 
General Manager Development in the Australian Oil 
Business Unit. Prior to joining Woodside, Duncan held a 
variety of managerial roles, mainly in projects and front-end 
development, for Shell International. Age: 50

Key Accountability – To build a best-in-class oil development 
and production business. Duncan is also responsible 
for performance and capability growth in Woodside’s 
well engineering and development functions and is the 
Company’s research and technology sponsor. 

Ian Fraser – Director Human Resources
Ian joined Woodside in August 2003 as Director Human 
Resources after three years as Executive Vice President Human 
Resources for BHP Steel Limited and more than 15 years in 
various senior executive management positions. Age: 52

Key Accountability – To provide leadership to the people 
related aspects of Woodside’s business, with responsibility 
for overall human resources strategy.

Leadership Team

Left to right from the lower step – David Martin, David Maxwell, 
Ian Jackson, Doug Bailey, Steve Ollerearnshaw, Agu Kantsler, 
Andrew Maiden, Duncan Clegg, Keith Spence, Ian Fraser.
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Corporate Governance Statement
This statement reports on the key governance principles 
and practices of Woodside. These principles and practices 
are reviewed regularly and upgraded or changed to 
reflect changes in law and what is regarded as best 
practice. Further information will become available on 
the Company’s website (www.woodside.com.au) as a 
new Corporate Governance section is launched and 
progressively updated throughout 2004.

New ASX Principles and Recommendations
On 31 March 2003, the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) 
Corporate Governance Council released Principles of Good 
Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations 
(ASX Principles). All ASX listed companies with financial 
years commencing after 1 January 2003 are obliged to report 
on whether they follow these recommendations on an 
“if not, why not” basis. 

Following the release of the ASX Principles, Woodside 
compared its existing practices with those described 
in the ASX Principles and accompanying best practice 
recommendations and found that Woodside already 
substantially complied with the majority of the ASX 
recommendations. Woodside has also taken this opportunity 
to review and expand or improve on a number of its 
existing policies and practices prior to their publication on 
the Company’s website.

Woodside would be formally required to report on its 
compliance with the ASX recommendations for its fiscal 
year commencing 1 January 2004. However, in the interests 
of good governance, comments on Woodside’s compliance 
with the recommendations for the year ended 31 December 
2003 have been included in this statement as well as a 
description of any steps being taken in response to the ASX 
recommendations.

Shareholders
Woodside’s shareholders play a fundamental role in 
enabling the Company to meet its objectives through 
the election or re-election each year of Directors to the 
Company’s Board and through their ongoing support as 
investors in Woodside shares.

Directors recognise that shareholders, as the ultimate owners 
of the Company, are entitled to receive timely and relevant 
high quality information about their investment. Similarly, 
prospective new investors are entitled to be able to make 
informed investment decisions when considering the 
purchase of shares in Woodside.

Shareholders are kept informed by the following means:

• the Concise Annual Report, the Full Financial Report 
and Half Yearly Report are mailed to shareholders as 
required, and are published on the Company’s website 
where they may be viewed by prospective investors 
and those shareholders who have elected not to receive 
mailed copies;

• periodic disclosures to the ASX in the form of regular 
(weekly) drilling releases and quarterly reports 
containing exploration, production and development 
information;

• updates on the Company’s activities at the Company’s 
Annual General Meeting through the Notice of Meeting, 
the Chairman’s Address and responses to shareholders’ 
questions at the meeting;

• ASX and media releases on the Company’s website; and

• briefings to those who advise shareholders. These 
are conducted following the release of full year, half 
year and major announcements for the purpose of 
promoting a better understanding of the Group. From 
time to time, similar briefings may also be provided 
direct to major shareholders. A key principle for all such 
communications is that no price-sensitive information 
will be disclosed during the briefings where that 
information has not previously been disclosed to the 
market generally. Furthermore, all briefing materials 
are released to the ASX and posted to the Company’s 
website prior to commencement of the briefing.

Continuous Disclosure and Market 
Communications Policy
Woodside is committed to ensuring that shareholders and 
the market are provided with full and timely information and 
that all stakeholders have equal and timely access to material 
information concerning the Company. 

Board and Governance
encouraging a culture that promotes ethical and responsible decision-making 
throughout the Company
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The Company’s Continuous Disclosure and Market 
Communications Policy was updated and approved by the 
Board in 2003 for publication on the Company’s website as 
recommended by ASX Principle 5. 

The Policy reinforces Woodside’s commitment to Continuous 
Disclosure and outlines management accountabilities 
and processes followed by the Company for ensuring 
compliance. It also describes Woodside’s guiding principles 
for market communications. This Policy will become 
available on the Company’s website during 2004. 

Board Charter 
During the year the Board adopted a formal Charter detailing 
its role, powers, duties and functions, as recommended 
under ASX Principle 1. 

The central role of the Board is to set the Company’s 
strategic direction, to select and appoint a Chief Executive 
Officer and to oversee the Company’s management and 
business activities. 

Powers reserved to the Board include:

• the appointment and removal of the Chief Executive 
Officer and Company Secretary;

• authorising equity issues and major debt raisings;

• authorising expenditures which exceed the Chief 
Executive Officer’s authority levels;

• approving strategic plans, budgets and performance 
objectives;

• approving the appointment and removal of direct reports 
to the Chief Executive Officer;

• approving senior management succession plans;

• approving the acquisition and sale of significant 
businesses; and

• approving annual, half year and quarterly reports and 
significant disclosures to the market.

The Board also recognises its responsibilities to Woodside’s 
employees, the communities and the environments within 
which Woodside operates and, where appropriate, other 
stakeholders. Responsibility for management of Woodside’s 

business activities is delegated to the Chief Executive 
Officer/Managing Director who is accountable to the Board.

Because of the uncertainties of the oil and gas business, 
as well as the need to replace depleting assets, the Board 
places significant emphasis on long-range planning, as well 
as participation in joint ventures in order to share risks. To 
achieve these objectives, management is expected to engage 
in commercial relations with others in a manner that will 
continue to make Woodside their “partner of choice”.

A copy of the Board Charter, detailing the Board’s duties, 
will be placed on the Company’s website in 2004.

Board Composition
The names of the Directors in office at the date of this 
Report, the year they were first appointed, their status as 
non-executive, independent or executive Directors and 
whether they are retiring by rotation and seeking re-election 
or are newly appointed Directors seeking election by 
shareholders at the 2004 Annual General Meeting, are set 
out in the table below.

Biographical details for each of the Directors are set out on 
page 37 of this Report.

As foreshadowed in last year’s Annual Report, the number of 
non-executive Directors on the Board reduced during the year 
from eleven to ten with the retirement of Mr Roger Vines on 
30 June 2003. Mr Richard Searby has advised the Board of his 
intention to retire at the 2004 Annual General Meeting and 
not seek re-election. Board size will then be returned to the 
preferred number of nine non-executive Directors.

Mr Ken Dean, a Shell nominated Director, has also advised 
the Board of his intention to retire at the 2004 Annual 
General Meeting. Shell has nominated Mr Peter van Rossum 
to replace Mr Dean. The Board has resolved to support 
the election of Mr van Rossum at the 2004 Annual General 
Meeting. Mr van Rossum’s details are contained in the Notice 
of Meeting for the 2004 Annual General Meeting.

Mr John Akehurst, the only executive Director on the Board 
during 2003, left the Company as Chief Executive Officer/
Managing Director and stepped down from the Board on 
29 August 2003. 

Names of Directors in Office at the Date of this Report

Directors First Appointed Non-executive Independent Retiring at 2004 
AGM

Seeking Re-election 
at 2004 AGM

RES Argyle 1995 Yes Yes Yes Yes

JR Broadbent 1998 Yes Yes No No

KA Dean 1998 Yes No Yes No

BPT de Wit 2002 Yes No No No

E Fraunschiel 2002 Yes Yes No No

CB Goode 1988 Yes Yes Yes Yes

PJMH Jungels 2002 Yes Yes No No

PJB Rose 1990 Yes Yes No No

RH Searby 1998 Yes Yes Yes No

TN Warren 2002 Yes No No No
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Directors’ Retirement and Re-election
At least one third of the members of the Board retire by 
rotation at each Annual General Meeting. In addition, any 
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy since the date 
of the previous Annual General Meeting must also submit 
themselves to shareholders for election at the next Annual 
General Meeting. 

Re-appointment of Directors retiring by rotation is not 
automatic. All Board Directors are subject to an annual 
performance evaluation in accordance with the evaluation 
process described later in this statement. 

Skills, Knowledge and Experience
The Board considers that between them, the non-executive 
Directors, including those offering themselves for election 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, bring the 
range of skills, knowledge and experience necessary to 
direct the Company.

In assessing the composition of the Board, the Directors 
have regard for the following guidelines:

• the Chairman should be both non-executive 
and independent and an Australian citizen or 
permanent resident;

• the Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director should be 
a full-time employee of the Company;

• more than half of the Board should comprise Directors 
who are both non-executive and independent;

• the Board should represent a broad range of 
qualifications, experience and expertise considered of 
benefit to the Company; and

• the number of Shell-nominated Directors, as a proportion 
of the Board, should normally be in the proportion 
that Shell’s holding of fully paid ordinary shares in the 
Company bears to all of the issued fully paid ordinary 
shares in the Company.

Board Succession Planning
The Board manages its succession plan with the assistance 
of the Governance & Nominations Committee.

The Committee reviews annually the size and 
composition of the Board and the mix of existing and 
desired competencies across Board members and reports 
its conclusions to the Board. 

The Board may engage the services of an independent 
global recruitment organisation to undertake a search 
for suitable candidates. 

Criteria considered by the Governance & Nominations 
Committee when evaluating prospective candidates are 
contained in the Committee’s Charter which will be posted 
on the Company’s website in 2004.

Professional Advice
Directors may, in carrying out their duties to the Company, 
seek external professional advice. They are entitled to 
reimbursement of all reasonable costs where such request 
for advice is approved by the Chairman.

Director Independence
The Board has adopted a policy on Directors’ independence. 
Pursuant to that policy the independence of Woodside 
Directors will be assessed by the Board with reference to 
the test of, and after taking into account the criteria for, 
“independence” recommended in ASX Principle 2. A copy of 
the policy will be placed on the Company’s website in 2004.

The purpose of this policy is:

• to describe the test that will be used and the criteria that 
will be taken into account by the Board when assessing 
the independence of each Director;

• to identify the information that will be collected from each 
Director to make the assessment of independence; and

• to outline the disclosure to shareholders of the assessment 
of independence of Directors, including the disclosure of 
any relationships and associations that may be perceived 
to affect the independence or objectivity of a Director. 

The test of whether a relationship or business is material is 
based on the nature of the relationship or business and on 
the circumstances and activities of the Director. Materiality 
is considered from the perspective of the Company and its 
group members, the persons or organisations with which the 
Director has an affiliation and from the perspective of the 
Director. Materiality thresholds are considered by the Board 
from time to time. The Board considers that:

• a material customer is a customer of the Company or 
group member which accounts for more than 2% of the 
Company’s consolidated gross revenue;

• a supplier is material if the Company or Group member 
accounts for more than 2% of the supplier’s gross 
revenue; and

• service on the Board for a period exceeding ten years is 
a period which could, or could reasonably be perceived 
to, materially interfere with a Director’s ability to act in 
the best interests of the Company.

In the event that one or more of these thresholds is 
exceeded, the Board then focuses on whether, in its 
judgement, that exceedence impacts on the independence 
of judgement of the Director.

The Board has considered the associations of each of the ten 
non-executive Directors in office at the date of this Report 
and its determination in relation to their independence is set 
out in the table on page 31.

The three Directors not considered to be independent are 
current executives and nominees of Shell Energy Holdings 
Australia Limited (Shell), which is a substantial shareholder in 
the Company. In most years, the number of decisions the Board 
makes on matters where the three Shell-nominated Directors 
are considered to have a conflict of interest are few. Such 
matters are dealt with under the Board’s conflict-of-interest 
policy. For the vast majority of decisions made by the Board, 
the three Shell-nominated Directors bring substantial global oil 
and gas industry expertise to the Board. The Board considers 
that the value of this expertise far outweighs any issues 
associated with their not having “independent Director” status.
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None of the non-executive Directors has ever been an 
employee of the Company and none is considered to have 
business or other relationships that could materially interfere 
with the exercise of their independent judgement, except 
in the case of the three Shell nominees in matters where 
Shell may have an interest. Non-executive Directors do not 
participate in performance-based share or option plans.

Two non-executive Directors have served as members of the 
Board for periods in excess of ten years, namely, Mr Charles 
Goode (15 years) and Dr John Rose (13 years). The Board 
has concluded that notwithstanding these periods of service, 
both Directors retain their independence. Mr Fraunschiel 
serves on the Board of Worley Ltd, a supplier of engineering 
services to Woodside. The value of services provided 
by Worley to Woodside in 2003 exceeded the Board’s 
materiality threshold relating to suppliers. Dr Jungels serves 
on the Board of Offshore Logistics Inc. Bristow Helicopters 
Australia Pty Ltd (Bristow) is a member of the Offshore 
Logistics Group of Companies. The value of services 
provided by Bristow to Woodside in 2003 also exceeded the 
Board’s materiality threshold relating to suppliers. The Board 
is satisfied that neither Mr Fraunschiel’s nor Dr Jungels’ 
independence is affected. Should a matter involving either 
Worley Ltd or Offshore Logistics Inc. come before the Board, 
the conflict-of-interest policy would apply.

Certain non-executive Directors hold directorships or 
executive positions in companies with which Woodside 
has commercial relationships. Details of these directorships 
and executive positions are set out on page 37 of this 
Report. Details of related party transactions are set out in 
Note 37 in the Full Financial Report. In any case, where 
a Director’s independence may be compromised, the 
Board’s conflict-of-interest policy applies.

Conflicts of Interest
The Board has approved “Conflict-of-Interest Guidelines” 
which apply if there is, or may be, a conflict between the 
personal or other interests of a Director and the business 
of Woodside. With certain exceptions such as Board 
remuneration decisions, a Director with an actual or 
potential conflict of interest in relation to a matter before 
the Board does not receive the Board papers relating to 
that matter and when the matter comes before the Board 
for discussion, the Director withdraws from the meeting for 
the period the matter is considered and takes no part in the 
discussions or decision-making process.

Minutes reporting on matters in which a Director is 
considered to have a conflict of interest are not provided 
to that Director. However, the Director is given notice 
of the nature of the matter for discussion and, as much 
as practicable, of the general nature of the discussion or 
decision reached.

Chairman
The Chairman of the Board, Mr Charles Goode, is an 
independent, non-executive Director. The Chairman is 
responsible for leadership of the Board, for the efficient 
organisation and conduct of the Board’s function and for the 
promotion of constructive and respectful relations between 
Board members and between Board and management.

Mr Goode is Chairman of Australia and New Zealand 
Banking Group Limited (ANZ). The Board considers that 
neither his Chairmanship of ANZ, nor any of his other 
commitments (listed on page 37 of this Report), interfere 
with the discharge of his duties to Woodside. The Board is 
satisfied that he commits the time necessary to discharge his 
role effectively.

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is Ms Karen Lange. The appointment 
and removal of the Company Secretary is a matter 
for decision by the Board. The Company Secretary is 
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied 
with and that governance matters are addressed. All 
Directors have access to her advice and services. 

Board Performance Evaluation
The Governance & Nominations Committee is responsible 
for determining the process for evaluating Board 
performance. Evaluations are conducted every year. The 
performances of the Board as a whole and each of its 
Committees are reviewed against the requirements of their 
respective Charters. In addition the individual performances 
of the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, and the 
Directors are also reviewed.

These annual evaluations have produced continuing 
improvements in Board processes and overall efficiency.

The Chairman’s performance is reviewed annually and 
feedback provided to the Chairman through a written report 
followed up by discussion with members of the Governance 
& Nominations Committee.

Individual Directors’ performance reports are provided to the 
individuals and copied to the Chairman. The performances 
of each of the Directors retiring at the next Annual General 
Meeting are taken into account by the Chairman of the 
Board in conjunction with the Governance & Nominations 
Committee when determining whether or not the Board 
should support the re-nomination of each Director.

It is usual practice each year for both the Board and those 
senior executives who report direct to the Chief Executive 
Officer to review the performance of the Chief Executive 
Officer/Managing Director.

Terms of Appointment, Induction Training 
and Continuing Education
All new Directors are provided with a form of letter of 
appointment setting out the key terms and conditions 
relative to the appointment, including duties, rights and 
responsibilities, the time commitment envisaged and the 
Board’s expectations regarding their involvement with 
Committee work.

Induction training is provided to all new Directors. It 
includes a comprehensive induction manual, meetings 
with the Chief Executive Officer and senior executives, 
information on key corporate and Board policies and the 
option to visit the Company’s principal operations either 
immediately on appointment or with the Board during its 
annual inspection tour.
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All Directors are expected to maintain the skills required to 
discharge their obligations to the Company. Directors are 
encouraged to undertake continuing professional education 
and where this involves industry seminars and approved 
education courses, this is paid for by the Company. In 
addition, the Company provides the Board with regular 
educational information papers and presentations on industry-
related matters and new developments with potential to 
impact the Company. Every year Directors conduct a tour 
of inspection of the Company’s sites and operations. During 
these tours, Directors meet directly with the Company’s 
operational staff, review health, safety and environmental 
performance and consider the progress of major new projects 
such as the LNG expansion project in 2003.

Directors’ Remuneration
Details of remuneration paid to Directors (executive 
and non-executive) and provision for Directors’ retiring 
allowance are set out on page 41 of this Report. 

Share Ownership and Dealing
The Company has a share trading policy, binding on 
Directors and employees, designed to assist Directors and 
employees to avoid insider trading and provide guidelines 
for trading in Woodside securities. The policy stipulates 
that the only appropriate time for a Director or employee 
to acquire or sell Woodside shares is when he or she is 
not in possession of price-sensitive information that is not 
generally available to the market. Directors wishing to buy 
or sell Woodside securities in accordance with the policy 
may only do so after first having advised the Chairman 
of his or her intention and having received clearance to 
do so. In the case of employees, there is a corresponding 
notification requirement.

Non-executive Directors may elect to participate in the Non-
Executive Directors’ Share Plan approved by shareholders at 
the 2000 Annual General Meeting. Purchases on-market as 
a result of such elections are made at pre-determined half 
yearly intervals, but only after Directors have determined 
they are not in possession of price-sensitive information that 
has not been released to the market. Similarly for purchases 
made for employees under the Woodside employee share 
plans, any employees in possession of price-sensitive 
information that has not been released to the market are not 
permitted to participate under the plans until such time as 
the information has either been disclosed to the market or it 
has ceased to be price-sensitive.

Any share dealing by Directors is notified to the ASX 
within five days.

Woodside employee and Director share trading practices 
are consistent with that proposed under ASX Principle 
3. The Woodside Share Trading Policy is presently being 
reviewed and upgraded and will be placed on the 
Company’s website in 2004.

Standard of Business Conduct
The Board has acknowledged in its Charter the expectations 
of all parties interested in the Company’s activities that the 
Directors will undertake their responsibilities with honesty, 

integrity, care and diligence, according to the law and in a 
manner which reflects the highest standards of governance. 
The Board is also responsible for encouraging a culture 
that promotes ethical and responsible decision-making 
throughout the Company.

Woodside has a Standard of Business Conduct which 
applies to all Directors and employees within the Group. 
This sets out such matters as required behaviours 
relating to confidentiality, conflicts of interest, use of 
the Company’s assets, fair dealing with customers and 
suppliers, share trading and other matters. As part of 
the overall review of all of the Company’s policies 
commenced in 2003, the Standard of Business Conduct is 
presently being revised to ensure that it is appropriately 
linked to the Woodside core values, that it is sufficiently 
comprehensive in scope and content to address issues 
relating to Woodside’s international growth, and to 
determine if any elements of the Standard require further 
expansion into stand-alone policies for publication on the 
Company’s website. It is anticipated that this review will 
be completed in the second half of 2004.

A summary of its main provisions along with a number of 
related policies will be published on the Company’s website 
progressively throughout 2004.

Political Contributions
The Board’s policy is not to contribute funds to any political 
party, politician, or candidate for public office.

Board Meetings
During the year ended 31 December 2003, the Board 
held seven scheduled meetings and one unscheduled 
meeting. Generally, scheduled meetings run for one 
and a half days.

Details of Directors’ attendance at these meetings are set 
out in the table on page 35 of this Report.

The Chairman sets the agenda for each meeting in 
conjunction with the Chief Executive Officer and Company 
Secretary. Any Director may request additional matters be 
added to the agenda.

Sessions are scheduled at most formal Board meetings for 
non-executive Directors to meet without management present.

Members of senior management attend meetings of the 
Board by invitation.

Copies of Board papers are circulated in advance of the 
meetings in either electronic or hard copy form. Directors 
are entitled to request additional information where they 
consider the information supplied by management is 
insufficient to support informed decision-making.

The Board works to an annual agenda encompassing 
periodic reviews of the Company’s operating business units, 
recurring statutory obligations, business approvals and other 
responsibilities identified in the Board Charter.

In March 2003, the Board held strategy discussions 
with management over a four day residential “retreat” 
and in June 2003 visited the North West Shelf Venture’s 
operations. 
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Committees of the Board
The Board has established three standing committees to 
assist in the discharge of its responsibilities.

These are:

• Audit & Risk Committee (formerly called Audit 
Committee);

• Governance & Nominations Committee; and

• Compensation Committee.

Each of the standing committees has its own Charter 
describing its role and duties. 

The office of the Company Secretary provides secretariat 
services for each Committee. 

All papers considered by the standing committees are 
available on request to Directors not on that committee. 
Minutes of all standing committee meetings are provided 
to all Directors and the proceedings of each meeting are 
reported by the Chairman of the Committee at the next 
Board meeting. All Directors may, through the Chairman of 
the Board, recommend the inclusion of specific topics on 
Board and committee agendas.

Ad hoc committees are convened from time to time to address 
major transactions or other matters calling for special attention. 

The term of the Shell Relationship Committee, formed 
as an ad hoc committee in August 2000, was extended 
to June 2004. Its members comprise all of the non-Shell-
nominated Directors. The purpose of the Committee is 
to provide a forum in which Directors can discuss, in 
the absence of Shell-nominated Directors, any matters 
relating to the ongoing relationship with Shell or any 
future proposal by Shell.

The number of Committee meetings held during the year, 

and members’ attendances at these meetings, is set out 
in the table below.

Audit & Risk Committee
The Audit & Risk Committee assists the Board to meet 
its oversight responsibilities in relation to the Company’s 
financial reporting, internal control structure, risk 
management procedures and the internal and external audit 
function. In doing so, it is the Committee’s responsibility 
to maintain free and open communication between the 
Committee, the external auditors, the internal auditors and 
the management of the Company.

Pursuant to ASX Listing Rules 4.10.3 and 12.7, the Audit & 
Risk Committee complies with ASX Principle 4.

The Committee’s Charter, detailing its duties, will be placed 
on the Company’s website in 2004.

Members of the Audit & Risk Committee are 
Mr E Fraunschiel (Chairman), Mr RES Argyle, 
Ms JR Broadbent and Mr KA Dean. The internal and 
external auditors, the Chief Executive Officer/Managing 
Director, the Chief Financial Officer and the Corporate 
Accounting Manager attend Committee meetings by 
invitation. The Committee meets with the external auditors 
at regular scheduled sessions without management present. 
The Committee met six times during the year.

Governance & Nominations Committee
The role of the Governance & Nominations Committee 
is to assist the Board to meet its oversight responsibilities 
in relation to the Company’s governance practices and to 
review Board composition and Board succession planning. 

The Committee’s Charter, detailing its duties, will be placed 
on the Company’s website in 2004.

Directors’ Attendances at Meetings

Board
Audit & 
Risk*

Compensation*
Governance & 
Nominations*

Shell 
Relationship

Other**

A B A B A B A B A B A B

JH Akehurst 5 5 2 2 3 3

CB Goode 8 8 2 2 4 4 4 4

RES Argyle 8 8 6 6 2 2 4 4 4 4 8 8

JR Broadbent 8 8 6 5 9 9 4 4

KA Dean 8 8 6 6 2 2 8 7

BPT de Wit 8 8 2 2

E Fraunschiel 8 7 6 6 2 1 4 3 4 4

PJMH Jungels 8 6 2 1 4 4 8 8

PJB Rose 8 8 9 9 4 4 4 4

RH Searby 8 8 2 1 2 2 4 4

RAG Vines 4 4 3 2 2 2 2 2

TN Warren 8 7 9 9 4 3

Column A indicates the number of meetings held during the period of each Director’s tenure.
Column B indicates the number of those meetings attended by the Director.
* Committee membership restructured 1 July 2003.
** Other ad hoc committee meetings.
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Members of the Governance & Nominations Committee 
are Mr RES Argyle (Chairman), Mr CB Goode, Dr PJB Rose 
and Mr TN Warren. The Committee met four times during 
the year.

Compensation Committee
The role of the Compensation Committee is to assist the 
Board in establishing coherent remuneration policies and 
practices which enable Woodside to attract, retain and 
motivate talented employees and Directors who will create 
value for shareholders.

The Committee’s Charter, detailing its duties, will be placed 
on the Company’s website in 2004.

Members of the Compensation Committee are Dr PJB Rose 
(Chairman), Ms JR Broadbent and Mr TN Warren. The 
Committee met nine times during the year on a formal basis 
and an additional three times for workshops with external 
consultants.

External Auditor Relationship
Pursuant to Board Policy, the Audit & Risk Committee 
oversees detailed Guidelines covering the terms of 
engagement of Woodside’s external auditor. The Guidelines 
include provisions directed to maintaining the independence 
of the external auditor and in assessing whether the 
provision of any non-audit service by the external auditor 
that may be proposed is appropriate. Such provisions 
are referenced to the Code of Ethics published by the 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC). 

Pursuant to the Guidelines a set of controls is in place to 
address threats to the independence of the external auditor 
including, in particular, any threat which may arise by 
reason of self-interest, self-review, advocacy, familiarity or 
intimidation, all terms defined by the IFAC’s Code of Ethics. 
The Guidelines classify a range of non-audit services, which 
could potentially be provided by the external auditor as: 

• acceptable within limits; 

• requiring the approval of the Chief Financial Officer;

• requiring the approval of the Audit Committee; or

• not acceptable.

The services considered not acceptable for provision by the 
external auditor are:

• internal audit;

• acquisition accounting due diligence where the external 
auditor is also the auditor of the other party;

• book-keeping or services relating to accounting records;

• the design, implementation, operation or supervision of 
information technology systems;

• mergers and acquisitions support where the external 
auditor is also auditor of the other party;

• appraisal or valuation and fairness opinions;

• risk management outsourcing/partnering;

• financial risk management;

• taxation transactions/structuring or assistance in 
resolution of disputes;

• human resources;

• corporate financing, funding or similar activities; or

• legal services.

Further, the Guidelines require rotation of the audit partner 
at least every five years, prohibit the reinvolvement of a 
previous audit partner in the audit service for two years 
following rotation, and provide that a former partner of 
the audit firm or member of the audit team may only be 
recruited into a position as a Director or senior employee of 
Woodside after the expiry of at least two years.

Risk Management
Through the Audit & Risk Committee, the Board is 
responsible for overseeing the implementation of the 
Company’s Risk and Internal Control Policy. 

The Company has, embedded in its management systems, a 
comprehensive program for the identification and assessment 
of risks and for their systematic management. Managers of all 
the Company’s business units report regularly to the Board 
on the key risks that may influence achievement of their 
business objectives. In addition, each business unit manager 
provides an annual assessment and assurance statement to 
the Audit & Risk Committee regarding the effectiveness of 
risk management, compliance and control.

The Audit & Risk Committee oversees the scope of the 
internal audit function including the establishment of the 
Audit & Business Risk Charter, approves the appointment 
and dismissal of the Audit & Business Risk Manager and has 
access to the internal audit function without the presence of 
other management. The Company’s internal audit function 
provides reports to the Audit & Risk Committee on the 
effectiveness of the risk-based control framework in the 
Company. The Company’s internal audit function reports to 
management and has all necessary access to management 
and information. 

The internal and external audit functions are separate 
and independent of each other. During 2003, the Board 
commissioned an independent external assessment of the 
scope and effectiveness of the internal audit function. 

Further details on the Company’s Risk and Internal Control 
Policy and its system of risk management will be made 
available on the Company’s website in 2004 under the 
Corporate Governance section.

Management Assurance
Consistent with ASX Recommendation 7.2, the Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have stated in 
writing to the Board that the Company’s financial reports 
present a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the 
Company’s financial condition and operational results and 
are in accordance with relevant accounting standards.

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have 
also stated in writing to the Board that the Company’s risk 
management and internal compliance and control system is 
operating efficiently and effectively in all material respects.
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Board of Directors
as at 31 December 2003

Charles B Goode, AC (Chairman)
BCom (Hons) (Melb), MBA (Columbia), Hon.LLD (Melb), 
Hon.LLD (Monash)

Appointed a Director in February 1988 and Chairman in 
May 1999. Chairman of the Shell Relationship Committee. 
Member of the Governance & Nominations Committee and 
attends most other Board Committee meetings. Chairman 
of Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited, 
Australian United Investment Company Limited, Diversified 
United Investment Limited, The Howard Florey Institute of 
Experimental Physiology and Medicine and The Ian Potter 
Foundation Ltd. Director of Singapore Airlines Ltd. Over 35 
years experience in the financial services industry. Age: 65

Tim N Warren
BSc (Hons) St Andrews

Appointed a Director in July 2002. Member of the Governance 
& Nominations and Compensation Committees. Chairman of 
Shell Australia Limited (Group) and Shell Energy Holdings 
Australia Limited (Group). Chairman and Managing Director 
of Shell Todd Oil Services Limited. Over 30 years experience 
in the international oil and gas industry. Age: 55

Jillian R Broadbent, AO
BA (Economics and Maths), Hon. D. Litt (UWS)

Appointed a Director in June 1998. Member of the Audit 
& Risk, Compensation and Shell Relationship Committees. 
Board Member of the Reserve Bank of Australia. Director of 
Coca-Cola Amatil Limited, Westfield America Management 
Limited, Westfield Management Limited and the Special 
Broadcasting Service. Member of the Sydney Advisory Board 
– Salvation Army Eastern Territory. Extensive experience 
in the finance sector, principally as a senior executive of 
Bankers Trust Australia. Age: 55

Richard H Searby, QC
MA (Oxon)

Appointed a Director in June 1998. Member of the Shell 
Relationship Committee. Chancellor of Deakin University. 
Director of Times Newspapers Holdings Limited (U.K.). 
Formerly Chairman of The News Corporation Limited and 
Equity Trustees Ltd. Formerly Director of Shell Australia 
Ltd., Rio Tinto Ltd. and Rio Tinto plc. Appointed Queen’s 
Counsel in 1971. Over 25 years experience in the resources 
industry. Age: 72

Dr Pierre H Jungels
PhD (Geophysics and Hydraulics) (Caltech), CBE

Appointed a Director in December 2002. Member of the 
Shell Relationship Committee. Chairman of OHM Ltd. 
Director of Imperial Tobacco Group PLC and Offshore 
Logistics Inc. Former President of the Institute of Petroleum. 
Over 30 years experience in the international oil and gas 
industry. Age: 59

BPT (Peter) de Wit
BA (Hons), MA (Dub)

Appointed a Director in August 2002. Director of Shell 
International Gas Limited, London. Member of the Gas and 
Power Executive Committee, Royal Dutch/Shell Group. 
Director of Shell MDS (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd. Over 30 years 
experience in the oil and gas industry. Age: 54

Erich Fraunschiel
BCom (Hons) (UWA)

Appointed a Director in December 2002. Chairman of 
the Audit & Risk Committee. Member of the Shell 
Relationship Committee. Director of West Australian 
Newspapers Holdings Limited, Foodland Associated 
Limited, Worley Group Limited and Rabobank Australia 
Limited. Chairman of Wesfarmers Federation Insurance 
Limited and Lumley General Insurance Limited. Board 
Member of the West Australian Opera Inc. Over 18 years 
experience in senior executive positions with Wesfarmers 
Limited. Ten years as Chief Financial Officer and 
Executive Director. Age: 58

Ken A Dean
BCom (Hons), FCPA, MAICD

Appointed a Director in February 1998. Member of the Audit 
& Risk Committee. Chief Executive Officer of Shell Finance 
Services, a division of Shell International Limited, London. 
Over 25 years experience in the Australian and international 
oil industry. Age: 51

Rory ES Argyle
LLB, DIP PL (Dundee) FAICD

Appointed a Director in November 1995. Chairman of the 
Governance & Nominations Committee. Member of the 
Audit & Risk and Shell Relationship Committees. Director of 
Woodside Group Staff Superannuation Pty. Ltd. Consultant 
to Freehills Solicitors. Over 35 years experience as a 
commercial and resources lawyer in Perth. Age: 67

Dr PJB (John) Rose, AO
BCom (NZ), DipEc (Camb), PhD (Melb)

Appointed a Director in December 1990. Chairman of the 
Compensation Committee. Member of the Governance & 
Nominations and Shell Relationship Committees. Director 
of Australian United Investment Company Limited, The 
Ian Potter Foundation Ltd and the Australian Ballet Centre. 
Formerly, a senior adviser to the Prime Minister of Australia 
from 1977 to 1983. Director of the University of Melbourne 
Business School and the Sidney Myer Professor of Commerce 
and Business Administration. Age: 68

Left to right from the front row – CB Goode, TN Warren, JR Broadbent, 
RH Searby, Dr PH Jungels, BPT de Wit, E Fraunschiel, KA Dean, 
RES Argyle, Dr PJB Rose.
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Directors’ Report
The Directors of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. present their 
report together with the Concise Financial Report of the 
consolidated entity, being Woodside Petroleum Ltd. and its 
controlled entities, for the year ended 31 December 2003 
and the external auditor’s report thereon.

Directors
The Directors of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. in office at any time 
during the financial year and at the date of this Report are: 

CB Goode (Chairman)

JH Akehurst (Managing Director) – stepped down 29 August 2003

RES Argyle

JR Broadbent

KA Dean*

BPT de Wit

E Fraunschiel

PJMH Jungels

PJB Rose

RH Searby*

RAG Vines – retired 30 June 2003

TN Warren

*  Messrs Dean and Searby have indicated their intention to retire at the 

conclusion of the Annual General Meeting on 15 April 2004.

Information on the Directors in office as at 31 December 
2003 is set out on page 37 of this Report.

Company Secretary
KA Lange – M.Bus, FCIS, FCPA, MAICD

Corporate Information
Woodside Petroleum Ltd. is a company limited by shares that 
is incorporated and domiciled in Australia (Victoria). It is the 
ultimate parent entity of the Group.

The registered office of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. is located at:

Woodside Plaza
240 St Georges Terrace
Perth  Western Australia  6000

Bankers
JPMorgan Chase Bank

Share Registry
Computershare Investor Services Pty. Limited

Auditors
Ernst & Young

Directors’ Meetings 
The number of Directors’ meetings held (including 
meetings of Committees of the Board) and the number 
of meetings attended by each of the Directors of Woodside 
Petroleum Ltd. during the financial year are shown on 
page 35 of this Report.

Principal Activities
The principal activities and operations of the Company 
during the financial year were hydrocarbon exploration, 
evaluation, development, production and marketing.

Other than as previously referred to in this Report, there 
were no other significant changes in the nature of the 
activities of the consolidated entity during the year.

Number of Employees
As at 31 December 2003, the Company had 2,219 employees. 
This compares with 2,418 employees as at 31 December 2002.

Consolidated Results
The consolidated operating profit attributable to the 
Company’s shareholders after provision for income tax and 
individually significant items was $526.7 million compared 
with a loss of $92.0 million in 2002.

Review of Operations
A review of the operations during the financial year and 
the results of those operations are set out on pages 8 to 
28 of this Report and in the Concise Financial Statements 
contained in this Report.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs
The review of operations sets out a number of matters, 
which have had an effect on the state of affairs of the 
consolidated entity. Other than those matters, there were no 
significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated 
entity during the financial year.

Events Subsequent to End of Financial Year
No other events have occurred subsequent to balance date 
which have a material effect on the financial statements of 
the consolidated entity.

Likely Developments
In general terms, the review of operations gives an 
indication of likely developments and the expected results 
of the operations.

Environmental Compliance
Woodside is subject to a range of environmental legislation 
with the most significant being:

• Petroleum (Submerged Lands) Act (Cwth) 1967;
• Petroleum (Submerged Lands) (Management of 

Environmental Regulations) 1999 (Cwth);
• Environmental Protection and Biodiversity Conservation 

Act 1999 (Cwth);
• Environmental Protection Act 1986 (WA); and 
• Environment Effects Act 1978 (Vic).

During 2003, Woodside complied, in all material respects, 
with the requirements in relation to the previously 
mentioned environmental legislation. More detailed 
information on the Company’s environmental performance 
is provided on page 26 of this Report.

Through its environmental policy, Woodside plans and 
performs activities so that adverse effects on the environment 
are avoided or kept as low as reasonably practicable.
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Dividend
The Directors have declared a final dividend out of profits 
of the Company in respect of the year ended 31 December 
2003 of 25 cents per ordinary share, (fully franked) payable 
on 26 March 2004. Together with the fully franked interim 
dividend of 21 cents per share paid to shareholders on 
26 September 2003, the total dividends for the year were 
46 cents per share (fully franked).

Woodside Petroleum Ltd. – Summary of Dividend Payments

Payment Date   Record Date Rate (¢) Franking

7 May 1993 23 April 1993 5 (F) Unfranked

5 November 1993 23 October 1993 3 (I) Unfranked

6 May 1994 22 April 1994 5 (F) Unfranked

4 November 1994 21 October 1994 3 (I) Unfranked

5 May 1995 21 April 1995 6 (F) Unfranked

3 November 1995 10 October 1995 4 (I) Unfranked

2 May 1996 18 April 1996 8 (F) Unfranked

7 November 1996 23 October 1996 6 (I) Unfranked

2 May 1997 17 April 1997 10 (F) 7¢ Fully Franked
@ 36% & 3¢ Unfranked

7 November 1997 22 October 1997 8 (I) Fully Franked

22 May 1998 6 May 1998 12 (F) Fully Franked

6 November 1998 21 October 1998 9 (I) Fully Franked

21 May 1999 5 May 1999 14 (F) Fully Franked

30 September 1999 16 September 1999 10 (I) Fully Franked

31 March 2000 20 March 2000 16 (F) Fully Franked

22 September 2000 8 September 2000 22 (I) Fully Franked
(includes 10¢ 

special dividend)

30 March 2001 19 March 2001 60 (F) Fully Franked
(includes 42¢ 

special dividend)

13 September 2001 30 August 2001 24 (I) Fully Franked
(includes 10¢ 

special dividend)

21 March 2002 8 March 2002 46 (F) Fully Franked
(includes 26¢ 

special dividend)

5 September 2002 27 August 2002 21 (I) Fully Franked
(includes 5¢ 

special dividend)

21 March 2003 7 March 2003 41 (F) Fully Franked
(includes 18¢ 

special dividend)

26 September 2003 5 September 2003 21 (I) Fully Franked
(includes 5¢ 

special dividend)

26 March 2004 5 March 2004 25 (F) Fully Franked

(F)  Final Dividend (I)   Interim Dividend

Corporate Governance
A statement of the Board’s governance practices in effect 
during the year is set out on pages 30 to 36 of this Report.

Directors’ and Executives’ Emoluments
Non-executive Directors
Fees paid to non-executive Directors of the Company are 
based on advice from external remuneration consultants. 
This advice takes into consideration the level of fees paid 
to Directors by other major Australian corporations, the 
size and complexity of the Company’s operations and the 

responsibilities and work requirements of Board members. 
Particulars of emoluments paid to or for the account of 
Directors during 2003 are set out in Table 1 on page 41 
of this Report. Within the limit of $1,650,000 set as the 
aggregate remuneration payable to non-executive Directors 
and approved by shareholders at the April 2002 Annual 
General Meeting, Board fees payable to non-executive 
Directors from 1 April 2003, were determined as follows:

• for the Chairman, $321,000 per annum inclusive of all 
committee work;

• for each other non-executive Director:

i. a fee of $89,000 per annum; and

ii. a fee of $14,000 per annum for each Board committee 
(other than the Shell Relationship Committee) or the 
Board of the trustee of the Woodside Group Staff 
Superannuation Fund or, where a non-executive 
Director is chairman of a Board Committee, then 
$21,000 per annum.

Fees payable to non-executive Directors are fixed. Non-
executive Directors are not entitled to incentive rewards 
for annual results or otherwise according to the Company’s 
performance.

All non-executive Directors received either a contribution 
to superannuation or an allowance equivalent to the 
superannuation guarantee levy, dependent on their 
personal circumstances and based on Board and committee 
fees. In addition, non-executive Directors other than 
officers of Shell are entitled to retirement benefits in 
accordance with a plan approved by shareholders at the 
Annual General Meeting in May 1999 (the “Plan”). Under 
the Plan, non-executive Directors accrue a maximum 
retirement benefit after ten years service on the Board. 
That maximum benefit is equal to three times the Director’s 
average annual emoluments over the three years prior to 
retirement. A pro-rata benefit is paid for periods of service 
greater than three years but less than ten years.

The Board has proposed that the Plan be terminated. A 
resolution will be put to shareholders at the 2004 Annual 
General Meeting which terminates the Plan and seeks 
shareholder approval both for the treatment of Directors’ 
accrued entitlements and for increased Directors’ fees. It is 
proposed that the accrued entitlements of existing Directors 
will, at their election, either be placed in an account with the 
Company (indexed annually to average weekly earnings) or, 
applied in the purchase on-market of Woodside shares that 
will be held in trust until the non-executive Director retires.

Board fees are not paid to executive Directors since the 
responsibilities of Board membership are considered in 
determining the remuneration provided as part of their 
normal employment conditions.

Chief Executive Officer (Managing Director) 
and Senior Executives
The Compensation Committee is responsible for making 
recommendations to the Board on remuneration policies and 
packages applicable to the Chief Executive Officer and Senior 
Executives of Woodside. The broad remuneration policy is 
to ensure the remuneration package properly reflects the 
person’s duties and accountabilities, level of performance, 
and that remuneration is competitive in attracting, retaining 
and motivating people of the highest quality. Executive 
remuneration is reviewed annually having regard to individual 
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and business performance against agreed targets set at the 
start of the year, relevant comparative information and internal 
and independent expert advice.

Woodside sources a number of senior staff from its 
technical adviser, Shell. The remuneration and benefits 
paid to Shell expatriate secondees is based on Shell’s 
international human resources policies and practices, with 
incentives relating to Woodside performance also approved 
by the Compensation Committee.

Woodside’s remuneration structure (including Shell 
secondees) is comprised of three components: fixed annual 
reward; short-term incentives; and long-term incentives.

Fixed Annual Reward
The fixed annual reward component is comprised of base 
salary, superannuation contribution and other allowances such 
as motor vehicle and health insurance. It is determined by the 
scope of the role, level of knowledge, skill and experience of 
the individual, along with their individual performance.

Short-Term Incentive
This variable component comprises an annual cash incentive 
based on the individual’s fixed annual reward. It is payable 
upon achievement of specific performance targets for the year 
under review. The targets are agreed at the commencement 
of each year to ensure they meet specific business objectives 
for which the Executive is responsible. The quantum of the 
incentive is determined and approved by the Compensation 
Committee on the basis of demonstrated performance at the 
end of the performance year.

Long-Term Incentive
This variable component is delivered through the Woodside 
Employee Share Plan. An interest-free limited recourse 
loan is provided to purchase shares in the Company 
which is at the discretion of the Board in accordance with 
the Woodside Employee Share Plan rules, approved by 
shareholders in 1997. The plan links the Executive’s reward 
directly to the growth in the Company’s share price and 
focuses the Executives on the future performance of the 
Company over the next three to five years.

Eligibility for this incentive is linked to the Company’s 
performance as well as the individual’s performance and is 
subject to annual review and approval of the Board. Shell 
secondees do not participate in this long-term incentive, 
however, they may be entitled to participate in the Share 
Option Plan operated by their parent company, Shell.

During 2003, with the assistance of independent external 
advisors, the Compensation Committee commenced an 
extensive review of the variable performance-related 
components of Executives’ packages with the intention 
of strengthening the links between individual rewards to 
Company performance, consistent with the ASX Principles 
on Good Corporate Governance. This work is expected to 
conclude by mid-2004.

Directors’ and Executives’ Benefits
Directors’ related party disclosures are set out in Note 37 
to the Full Financial Report. Table 1 on page 41 of this 
Report shows remuneration details for each Director of the 
Company. Table 2 on page 41 of this Report shows the 
remuneration details for the five most highly remunerated 
officers of the Company. 

Directors’ Interests in Shares

The particulars of Directors’ interests in shares of the 
Company as at 18 February 2004 are set out in Table 3 on 
page 41 of this Report.

Directors’ Benefits
During or since the end of the financial year, no Director of 
the Company has received, or become entitled to receive, 
a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company, its 
controlled entities or a related body corporate with a Director 
or with a firm of which a Director is a member, or with an 
entity in which a Director is a member, or with an entity in 
which a Director has a substantial interest other than:

i.  a benefit included in the aggregate amount of 
remuneration received, or due and receivable, by Directors 
other than as reported in the consolidated accounts;

ii.  normal benefits as a full-time employee of the Company 
or a related corporation; or

iii. as outlined under the heading Indemnification and 
Insurance of Directors and Officers.

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors and Officers
The Company’s Constitution (Rule 118) requires the 
Company to indemnify each Director, secretary, executive 
officer or employee of the Company against liabilities (to 
the extent the Company is not precluded by law from doing 
so) incurred in or arising out of the conduct of the business 
of the Company or the discharge of the duties of any such 
person. The Company has entered into deeds of indemnity 
with each of its Directors in terms of the indemnity provided 
under the Company’s Constitution. The Company and the 
Board have proposed that the existing deed of indemnity be 
updated. A resolution will be put to shareholders at the 2004 
Annual General Meeting seeking approval of a new deed.

The Company has paid a premium under a contract insuring 
each Director, secretary, executive officer or employee of the 
Company and its controlled entities against liability incurred 
in that capacity.

Disclosure of the nature of the liability covered by and the 
amount of the premium payable for such insurance is subject 
to a confidentiality clause under the contract of insurance.

The Company has not provided any insurance for the 
external auditor of the Company or a body corporate related 
to the external auditor.

Rounding of Amounts 
The amounts contained in this Report have been rounded 
to the nearest thousand dollars under the option available 
to the Company under Australian Securities and Investments 
Commission Class Order 98/0100 dated 10 July 1998.

On behalf of the Board and in accordance with a resolution 
of the Board of Directors made on 18 February 2004.

Charles Goode, AC  Erich Fraunschiel
Chairman   Chairman of Audit & 
    Risk Committee

Dated at Perth this 18th day of February 2004.
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Table 2 – Remuneration Details for the Five Most Highly Paid Executive Officers of the Company (A$)

Base Salary Incentives Benefits & 
Allowances Share Plan

Company 
Contributions to 
Superannuation

Total

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e)

S Ollerearnshaw

CEO North West Shelf Ventures 

(Shell Expatriate)

965,375 246,656 219,520 - - 1,431,550

CJ Cronin

Director

Corporate Strategy, Planning and Performance

286,667 296,687 439,218 126,339 - 1,148,911

DW Bailey 

Chief Financial Officer

455,000 150,000 144,348 241,590 10,760 1,001,698

KW Spence

Director Oil Business Unit

Acting CEO of Woodside

344,000 140,000 182,069 190,324 113,520 969,913

DP Maxwell

Director Gas Business Unit

344,000 180,000 62,069 190,392 113,520 889,981

(a)   For S Ollerearnshaw this represents the Expatriate Base Administration Salary.

(b)   Reflects payments made in 2003 for the Woodside 2002 calendar-year performance. For CJ Cronin this also includes a pro-rata payment in respect of 2003.

(c)   Reflects the value of allowances and benefits including motor vehicles, health insurance, Parent Company expatriate terms and conditions (housing, home leaving, boarding 
fees etc). For CJ Cronin this also includes once-off ex-gratia termination payment.

(d)   Represents the estimated annual cost to the Company of the Employee Share Plan (including both the interest-free and limited-recourse elements).

(e)   For CJ Cronin a cash allowance paid in lieu of superannuation contributions is included in Benefits and Allowances.  

Table 3 – Directors’ Interests in Shares as at 18 February 2004

1 2 3 4

RES Argyle 7,000 - - 11,300

JR Broadbent - 5,217 20,000 10,000

KA Dean 1,000 - - -

BPT de Wit - - - -

E Fraunschiel - - 20,000 -

CB Goode 2,000 18,756 98,000 -

PJMH Jungels - 1,721 - -

PJB Rose 4,000 3,169 - -

RH Searby - - - -

TN Warren - - - -

(1)  Beneficial, in own name.

(2)  Beneficial, in own name via Non-Executive Directors’ Share Plan.

(3)  Beneficial, private company or trust.

(4)  Related interest.

Table 1 – Remuneration Details for each Director of the Company (A$)

Base Salary Board Fees
Short Term 
Incentive / 

Bonus

Benefits & 
Allowances

Share Plan 
Value

NED Share 
Plan

Company 
Contributions to 
Superannuation

Directors’ 
Retiring 

Allowance
Total

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)

Executive Director

720,000   -    516,670 3,552,099 589,442 - 7,093   -    5,385,304

CB Goode   -    157,508   -      -      -    157,492 28,350 27,180 370,530

RES Argyle   -    137,900   -      -      -    - 12,411 46,123 196,434

JR Broadbent   -    80,768   -      -      -    32,632 10,206 43,755 167,361

KA Dean   -    100,400 (g)   -      -      -    - 9,036   -    109,436

BPT de Wit   -    94,558 (g)   -      -      -    -   -      -    94,558

E Fraunschiel   -    112,107   -      -      -    -   -      -    112,107

PJMH Jungels   -    77,462   -    82,543   -    28,408   -      -    188,413

PJB Rose   -    72,538   -      -      -    53,942 5,301 19,934 151,715

RH Searby   -    93,400   -      -      -    - 8,406 26,804 128,610

RAG Vines   -    51,400   -      -      -    - 4,626 39,053 95,079

TN Warren   -    120,881 (g)   -      -      -    -   -      -    120,881

(a)   Reflects a payment made in 2003 for the Woodside 2002 calendar-year performance plus a pro-rata payment in respect of 2003.

(b)   Reflects the value of allowances and benefits including travel, motor vehicles, health insurance and termination payment.

(c)   Represents the estimated annual cost to the Company of the Employee Share Plan (including both the interest-free and limited-recourse elements).

(d)   Participation in the Non-Executive Directors’ Share plan.

(e)   Includes SGC contributions. For JH Akehurst cash allowance paid in lieu of superannuation contributions included in Benefits and Allowances.

(f)   Provision for Directors’ retiring allowance made during the year. In 2003 RAG Vines retired and his accrued provision of $230,101 was paid out. The total 
amount accrued for all Directors to 31 December amounts to $1,873,880.

(g)   Board fees for Directors nominated by Shell are paid directly to their employing company, not to the individuals.

Non-Executive Directors

JH Akehurst (MD/CEO)
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Shareholder Information
Annual General Meeting
The 33rd Annual General Meeting will be held in the 
Grand Ballroom at the Burswood Convention Centre, 
Great Eastern Highway, Burswood, Western Australia on 
Thursday, 15 April 2004 at 10.00 am (WST). Full details of 
the meeting are contained in the Notice of Annual General 
Meeting sent with this Report.

Stock Exchange Listing
Woodside Petroleum Ltd. securities are listed on the 
Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) under the Code “WPL”.

American Depository Receipts
The Bank of New York sponsors a Level One American 
Depository Receipts (ADR) program in the United States of 
America. One Woodside share equals one ADR and trades 
over the counter on the New York Stock Exchange under the 
symbol “WOPEY”.

ADR holders should deal directly with the Bank of New York 
on all matters relating to their ADRs. Enquiries should be 
directed to:

The Bank of New York
ADR Division
101 Barclay Street
22nd Floor West
New York   NY   10286
USA Toll Free Number: 1-888-BNY-ADRS
Website:  www.adrbny.com

Share Registry
All shareholding related enquiries should be directed to the 
Company’s registry – Computershare Investor Services Pty. 
Limited (Computershare) – at the following contact points:

Computershare Investor Services Pty. Limited
GPO Box D182
Perth  Western Australia  6840
E-mail: web.queries@computershare.com.au
Telephone:  (61) 3 9615 5970 (outside Australia)
 1300 557 010 (within Australia)
Facsimile:  (61) 8 9323 2033

All written enquiries should include your Holder 
Identification Number (HIN) or Securityholder Reference 
Number (SRN) as it appears on your Holding Statement 
along with your current address.

The Woodside website (www.woodside.com.au) allows 
access to general registry information on Woodside and 
information specific to your own shareholding. Visitors to 
the website can obtain share price and related graphical 
information. A discrete area of the website provides 
specific shareholder information. This area can only be 
accessed by input of your HIN or SRN, as well as other 
personal information to preserve security.

Dividends
The Company usually pays an interim dividend in September 
and a final dividend in March of each year. The 2003 final 
dividend will be paid on 26 March 2004. The record date for 
the 2003 final dividend is 5 March 2004.

The history of dividends paid by the Company is shown on 
page 39 of this Report. The following options are available 
regarding payment of dividends:

i. By cheque payable to the shareholder. Lost or 
stolen cheques should be reported immediately to 
Computershare, in writing; or

ii. By electronic funds transfer to an Australian bank, 
building society or credit union account.

Electronic payments are credited on the dividend payment 
date and confirmed by a payment advice sent to the 
shareholder. Request forms for this service are available from 
Computershare.

Shareholders with a registered United Kingdom (UK) address 
will receive a UK currency cheque.

Change of Address
It is very important that shareholders notify 
Computershare immediately, in writing, of any change 
to their registered address.

Change of Name
Shareholders should notify Computershare, in writing, and 
attach a certified copy of a relevant marriage certificate or 
deed poll.

Tax File Numbers (TFN)
Although it is not compulsory for each shareholder to 
provide a TFN or exemption details, for those shareholders 
who choose not to, the Company will be obliged to 
deduct tax from any unfranked portion of their dividends 
at the top marginal rate. TFN notification forms can be 
downloaded from the Woodside website or obtained from 
Computershare, any Australia Post office or the Australian 
Taxation Office.

Woodside Publications
Concise Annual Report and Half Yearly Report
The Concise Annual Report is mailed to shareholders in March. 
Shareholders also receive a Half Yearly Report in September.

Optional Full Financial Report
The Company produces a Full Financial Report for shareholders 
who wish to receive the full financial statements and notes for 
the year. This Report is provided to shareholders at no cost. 
Shareholders wanting to receive the Full Financial Report are 
requested to notify Computershare. The Report is available in 
printed form or electronically from the Company’s website.

Shareholders who do not want to receive a Report
Shareholders who have previously notified Computershare that 
they do not want to receive the Annual Report will not be sent 
either the Concise Annual Report or the Full Financial Report 
unless they notify Computershare otherwise. Shareholders 
currently in receipt of the Concise Annual Report, but who no 
longer wish to receive any reports, including the Company’s 
Half Yearly Report, can also notify Computershare.

Information about Woodside
Further information about the Company can be obtained 
from the Company’s website at www.woodside.com.au

Requests for specific information on the Company can be 
directed to the Company Secretary at the following address:

Woodside Plaza
240 St Georges Terrace
Perth   Western Australia   6000
Telephone:  (61) 8 9348 4000
Facsimile:  (61) 8 9214 2777
E-mail: investor@woodside.com.au
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Concise Financial Report

The financial statements and other specific disclosures have been derived from Woodside Petroleum Ltd. and its controlled entities’ 
(“Economic Entity”) Full Financial Report for the year. Other information included in the Concise Financial Report is consistent with 
the Economic Entity’s Full Financial Report.

The Concise Financial Report does not, and cannot be expected to, provide as full an understanding of the financial performance, 
financial position and financing and investing activities of the Economic Entity as the Full Financial Report.

A copy of the Economic Entity’s 2003 Full Financial Report, including the independent audit report, is available to all shareholders, 
and will be sent to shareholders without charge upon request. The 2003 Full Financial Report can be requested by telephone 
(Australia: 1300 557 010  outside Australia: (61) 3 9615 5970) and by Internet at www.woodside.com.au



Statement of Financial Performance
For the Year ended 31 December 2003

 Notes  Economic Entity 

  2003  2002

  $000  $000

Revenues from oil and gas operations  2,059,282  2,240,603

Cost of sales  (799,849)  (946,966)

Gross profit  1,259,433  1,293,637

Other revenues from ordinary activities  152,398  96,110

Share of associates’ net profits/(losses)   (5,859)  (6,306)

Borrowing costs expensed  (54,036)  (78,635)

Other expenses from ordinary activities  (524,008)  (1,237,077)

Profit from ordinary activities before Income Tax   827,928  67,729

Income Tax attributable to ordinary activities  (301,243)  (159,721)

Net profit/(loss) attributable to members of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. 3 526,685  (91,992)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) 4 79.0  (13.8)

Dividend per share (cents/share) 5 (b) 46.0  62.0

The statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the discussion and analysis on page 45 of this Report 
and the notes to the Concise Financial Report set out on pages 50 to 55 of this Report.
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Discussion and Analysis of the Statement of Financial Performance

Overview
Woodside’s 2003 underlying financial performance declined by 19.9% due principally to lower oil volumes and increased 
exploration expense. In 2002 the adoption of a revised accounting policy for exploration and evaluation (E & E) costs 
and a write-down of the carrying value of Woodside’s investment in Oil Search Limited significantly affected the reported 
results (see note 3).

   Economic Entity 

  2003  2002

  $000  $000

Net Profit After Tax – Before Significant Items 526,685 657,792

(less)/plus significant items  

 Opening balance impact of change to Successful Efforts approach to Exploration

 and Evaluation accounting - (643,739)

 Write-down in value of investment in Oil Search Limited - (106,045)

Reported net profit/(loss) after tax 526,685 (91,992)

Issues that affected the Economic Entity’s financial performance in the period were:

Revenue from oil and gas operations

Lower sales volumes reduced revenue by $56.3 million, resulting predominantly from natural field decline on the Laminaria 
project, this was partially offset by increased LNG, natural gas and North West Shelf condensate sales. The average realised 
oil price in 2003 was US$27.62 per barrel compared with US$21.93 in 2002, increasing revenues by A$226.6 million. However 
the appreciation of the Australian dollar against the US dollar decreased revenue by A$344.0 million with an average A$/US$ 
exchange rate in 2003 of 0.6523 compared with 0.5444 in 2002.

Cost of sales

Production costs declined by $45.6 million largely as a result of reduced Laminaria operating costs and the effect of the 
appreciation of the Australian dollar on hedging of operating costs. Petroleum Resource Rent Tax (PRRT) expense decreased 
by $82.0 million during the year as a result of lower Laminaria sales and a refund received from the Australian Taxation Office 
(ATO) relating to the clarification of technical amendments to the PRRT legislation. Depreciation and amortisation decreased 
by $52.7 million mainly due to the decline in Laminaria production. 

Other revenues from ordinary activities

Appreciation of the Australian dollar resulted in a decrease in interest income on the Greater Sunrise settlement receivable of 
$4.8 million.   

Borrowing costs expensed 

Lower average debt levels, lower interest rates and the appreciation of the Australian dollar have combined to reduce these 
costs by $23.8 million.

Other expenses from ordinary activities

After eliminating the effects of the 2002 significant items these costs have increased by $143.3 million. The main factors 
contributing to this increase were exploration expense and amortisation of exploration permit acquisition costs during the year 
up by $129.3 million and foreign currency losses up by $18.7 million due to the appreciation of the A$/US$ exchange rate.     

Income Tax attributable to ordinary activities

The effective tax rate, after eliminating 2002 significant items, has increased to 36.38% in 2003 from 33.30% in 2002 mainly due 
to the effect of non-deductible foreign exploration expenditure.

Key metrics

Return on equity (net profit attributable to the members of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. on total equity) increased from -4.0% to 
21.7% due to the significant items incurred in 2002 (see note 3). Adjusting for significant items, return on equity decreased 
from 28.4% to 21.7%.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2003

 Notes  Economic Entity 

  2003  2002

  $000  $000

Current Assets   

Cash assets 177,601 155,352

Receivables 260,878 298,361

Inventories 14,007 39,381

Other financial assets 73,123 102,516

Other assets 11,342 20,894

Total current assets 536,951 616,504

Non-Current Assets  

Receivables 307,252 347,016

Inventories 18,264 12,364

Equity accounted investments 9,096 29,666

Other financial assets 106,034 146,756

Exploration and evaluation 653,518 556,019

Oil and gas properties 2,985,154 2,866,808

Other plant and equipment 137,910 79,277

Deferred tax assets 649 649

Other assets 27,471 355,509

Total non-current assets 4,245,348 4,394,064

Total assets 4,782,299 5,010,568

Current Liabilities  

Payables 335,783 317,032

Current tax liabilities 100,992 105,152

Provisions 55,064 56,848

Other liabilities 86,747 117,746

Total current liabilities 578,586 596,778

Non-Current Liabilities  

Interest bearing liabilities 1,068,376 1,429,580

Deferred tax liabilities 455,090 473,309

Provisions 156,552 123,345

Other liabilities 90,164 67,174

Total non-current liabilities 1,770,182 2,093,408

Total liabilities 2,348,768 2,690,186

Net assets 2,433,531 2,320,382

Equity   
Contributed equity 706,491 706,491

Retained profits 6 1,727,040 1,613,891

Total equity 2,433,531 2,320,382

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the discussion and analysis on page 47 of this Report and 
the notes to the Concise Financial Report set out on pages 50 to 55 of this Report.
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Discussion and Analysis of the Statement of Financial Position

Overview
The Economic Entity’s net assets increased by 4.9% to $2,433.5 million over the year.

Issues that affected the Economic Entity’s financial position in the period were:

Assets

• Receivables (non-current) – $40.0 million reduction due to effect of the appreciation of the Australian dollar against the 
US dollar on the Greater Sunrise deferred settlement of proceeds.

• Other financial assets (current and non-current) – $46.4 million reduction representing the written down value of the 
investment in Oil Search Limited which was sold during the year and deferred costs on open hedges, which after 
accounting for the increases in oil prices, the appreciation of the A$/US$ exchange rate and the lower level of hedging, 
have reduced by $16.0 million.

• Exploration and evaluation – Additions of $97.8 million relating to evaluation activity in previously discovered areas. Net 
acquisition cost additions of $46.0 million after amortisation. Net exploration costs written off of $46.2 million.

• Oil and gas properties – Significant additions during the period included $105.2 million in relation to the LNG Train 
4 project, $70.9 million in relation to the Enfield oil project, $46.6 million in relation to the Second Trunkline project, 
$31.1 million in relation to the Ohanet project and $12.0 million in relation to the Goodwyn Low Pressure Train project. 
Offsetting these additions was amortisation of $223.1 million.

• Other plant and equipment – Significant additions during the period included $57.0 million in relation to the new 
corporate office fitout.

• Other assets – Deferred exchange fluctuation on US$ borrowings changed from a $332.5 million unrealised loss to a 
$20.4 million unrealised gain due to the appreciation of the A$/US$ exchange rate. Accordingly the balance is now 
reported in Other liabilities (non-current) as a deferred gain.

Liabilities

• Interest bearing liabilities – $356.9 million reduction in the A$ value of US$ debt due to the appreciation of the A$/US$ 
exchange rate and a net loan repayment of US$10 million. During the year a ten-year US$250 million bond was issued with 
a maturity of 2013. The proceeds received from this issue were used to repay the bilateral loans outstanding at that date.

• Provisions (non-current) – Increased due to ongoing provision for restoration obligations of $29.5 million. 

• Other liabilities (non-current) – Deferred exchange fluctuation on US$ borrowings balance now $20.4 million gain (as per 
Other assets).

Equity

• The increase in equity arises from the reported profit for the financial year less the payment of dividends.

Key metrics

Gearing (net debt/net debt + equity) has decreased from 35.5% in 2002 to 26.8% in the current period.

The Company has substantial long-term undrawn financing facilities totalling A$902 million for any long or short-term funding 
requirements. 
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year ended 31 December 2003

   Economic Entity 

  2003  2002

  $000  $000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities   

Receipts from customers  2,123,110  2,388,888

Interest received  12,112  9,472

Dividends received  12,150  9,183

Payments to suppliers and employees  (333,556)  (488,092)

Borrowing costs paid (net of capitalised amounts)  (66,725)  (79,839)

Management and other fees   44,095  52,050

Royalty, excise and PRRT payments  (271,388)  (373,688)

Income Tax/GST paid  (316,925)  (311,123)

Net cash from operating activities  1,202,873  1,206,851

Cash Flows from Investing Activities   

Payments for capital and exploration expenditure  (812,104)  (691,255)

Proceeds from sale of investments  62,179  2,195

Proceeds from sale of exploration and evaluation   9,089  3,039

Proceeds from sale of oil and gas properties  1,580  1,514

Payments for investments in other entities  (1,000)  (9,950)

Advances to employees relating to share plan  (23,434)  (50,586)

Repayments from employees relating to share plan  23,006  15,128

Net cash used in investing activities  (740,684)  (729,915)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities   

Drawdown of borrowings  1,190,901  364,327

Repayment of borrowings  (1,195,177)  (434,162)

Advances (to)/from other entities  -  32,653

Dividends paid  (413,333)  (446,667)

Debt establishment costs paid  (1,153)  -

Net cash used in financing activities  (418,762)  (483,849)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held  43,427  (6,913)

Cash at Beginning of Financial Year  155,352  160,556

Effects of exchange rate changes on the

balances of cash held in foreign currencies  (21,178)  1,709

Cash at End of Financial Year  177,601  155,352

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the discussion and analysis on page 49 of this Report and the 
notes of the Concise Financial Report set out on pages 50 to 55 of this Report.
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Discussion and Analysis of the Statement of Cash Flows

Overview
Cash flows from operations in the period provided sufficient funds to meet all requirements for investing activities, repayment 
of debt and the interim dividend. 

Issues that affected the Economic Entity’s cash flows in the period were:

Cash flows from operating activities

• Lower receipts from customers are mainly due to the decline in revenues and the draw on prepaid gas balances by 
customers (unearned revenues).

• Lower PRRT payments due to lower Laminaria sales and a refund received from the ATO in relation to clarification of 
technical amendments to the PRRT legislation. Lower excise payments as a result of the decline in relevant sales revenues.

Cash flows used in investing activities

• Increased exploration and evaluation expenditure in 2003, in addition to oil and gas property expenditure on a number of 
projects (LNG Train 4, Enfield, Second Trunkline, Ohanet and Goodwyn Low Pressure Train).

• Proceeds received from sale of investments represents the proceeds on the sale of the investment in Oil Search Limited.

Cash flows used in financing activities 

• During the year a ten-year US$250 million bond was issued, the proceeds of which were used to repay the bilateral 
loans outstanding at that date and a net loan repayment of US$10 million was made, compared with a net repayment of 
US$40 million in 2002.

• Dividend payments were slightly lower in 2003.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Concise Financial Report
For the Year ended 31 December 2003

1. Preparation of Concise Financial Report
The Concise Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standard 
AASB 1039 “Concise Financial Reports” and applicable Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views. The financial statements 
and specific disclosures required by AASB 1039 have been derived from the Economic Entity’s Full Financial Report 
for the financial year. Other information included in the Concise Financial Report is consistent with the Economic 
Entity’s Full Financial Report. The Concise Financial Report does not, and cannot be expected to, provide as full an 
understanding of the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing activities of the Economic 
Entity as the Full Financial Report.

The accounting policies are consistent with those of the previous year except as described below.

2.  Changes in Accounting Policies
Provisions – employee benefits

(i) Change in accounting policy regarding employee benefit provisions

 Description of and Reason for Change

 The Economic Entity has adopted the revised Accounting Standard AASB 1028 “Employee Benefits”, which has resulted 
in a change in the accounting policy for the measurement of employee benefit liabilities. Previously, the Economic 
Entity measured the provision for employee benefits based on remuneration rates applicable as at the reporting date. 
In accordance with the requirements of the revised Standard, the provision for the employee benefits is now measured 
based on the remuneration rates expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Financial Effect of Change

 The effect of the revised policy has been to increase employee benefit liabilities at the beginning of the year by 
$676 thousand, decrease opening consolidated retained profits by $203 thousand and increase receivables by 
$473 thousand. In addition, current year profits have decreased by $19 thousand due to an increase in the employee 
benefits expense. Current provisions at 31 December 2003 have also increased by $429 thousand and non-current 
provisions have increased by $311 thousand as a result of the change in accounting policy.

(ii) Revised Policy

 Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering services up to the end of 
the reporting period. These benefits include wages and salaries, annual leave, long service leave and the provision 
of interest-free loans under the Woodside Employee Share Plan. Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, 
annual leave, sick leave (regardless of whether they are expected to be settled within 12 months) and other employee 
benefits expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts. All other 
employee benefit liabilities are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflow to be made in respect 
of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period. 

 In determining the present value of future cash outflows, the interest rates attaching to government guaranteed securities 
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability are used. Rates which approximate the 
Economic Entity’s incremental borrowing rate are used to determine the present value of cash inflows arising from the 
employee share plan receivable.

 The cost of providing interest-free loans to employees under the Woodside Employee Share Plan affects Woodside’s 
reported performance through increased employee benefit costs each period. Any costs arising from the limited-recourse 
component of the plan are recognised as an employee expense in the period they are incurred. The option value to 
the employee of the limited-recourse nature of the Plan is not charged as an employee benefit expense. The costs to 
the Company of providing the Share Plan benefit to employees is included in determining the remuneration of relevant 
employees as disclosed in the Economic Entity’s Full Financial Report.

Contributions to the Economic Entity’s superannuation plans by entities within the Economic Entity are charged against 
profit when due. The Economic Entity does not record excesses of assets over accrued membership benefits of the 
superannuation funds’ defined benefits categories as an asset in the financial report.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Concise Financial Report
For the Year ended 31 December 2003

   Economic Entity 

  2003  2002

  $000  $000

3. Specific Items within Profit from Ordinary Activities   

Profit from ordinary activities after income tax, includes the following revenues 
and expenses whose disclosure is relevant in explaining the financial performance 
of the entity.

Individually significant items

 (i) Adoption of revised exploration and evaluation policy – 
 Opening balance adjustment  

  Exploration and evaluation  - (386,356)

  Oil and gas properties  

      Projects in development - (235,094)

      Producing projects - (191,078)

   - (812,528)

  Applicable Income Tax benefit - 168,789

   - (643,739)

  

 (ii) Impact of revised exploration and evaluation policy on 2002 performance  

  Oil and gas properties, depreciation/amortisation – transferred exploration and evaluation - 51,362

  Exploration expense current year - (126,445)

  Exploration expense – amortisation licence acquisition costs - (1,715)

   - (76,798)

  Applicable Income Tax benefit - 5,186

   - (71,612)

    

 (iii) Investment in Oil Search Limited

  Diminuition in value of investment - (106,045)

  Applicable Income Tax benefit - -

   - (106,045)

4. Earnings Per Share
 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are identical.

 Earnings/(loss) used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 526,685 (91,992)

 Weighted average number of shares on issue used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 666,666,667 666,666,667

 Basic earnings/(loss) per share (cents) 79.0 (13.8)
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Concise Financial Report
For the Year ended 31 December 2003

5. Dividends
(a) Dividends recognised in the current year by the Company

   Cents per Total amount Date of Tax rate for Percentage

   share $000 payment franking credit franked

 2003     

 2002 Final – ordinary 41.0 273,333 21/3/2003 30% 100%

 2003 Interim – ordinary 21.0 140,000 5/9/2003 30% 100%

 Total franked amount  413,333

 2002

 2002 Interim – ordinary 21.0 140,000 5/9/2002 30% 100%

 Total franked amount  140,000

 

 No unfranked dividends have been declared or paid during the year.

   Economic Entity 

  2003  2002

  $000  $000

    

(b) Summary of dividends in relation to reported periods
 Interim dividend 21.0 cents (2002: 21.0 cents)

  (declared and paid) 140,000 140,000

 Final dividend  

  Declared February 2003: 41 cents - 273,333

  Declared February 2004: 25 cents (see note 8)  166,667 -

    306,667 413,333

  Dividend in respect of financial year  46 cents 62 cents

6. Retained Profits
Movements in Retained Profits

 Balance at Beginning of Year 1,613,891 1,763,976

 Adjustment arising from adoption of revised accounting standard AASB 1028 “Employee Benefits”

 (refer note 2) (203) -

 Net profit/(loss) attributable to members of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. 526,685 (91,992)

 Aggregate of amounts transferred from the capital profits reserve - 81,907

 Dividends provided for or paid  (413,333) (140,000)

 Balance at End of Year 1,727,040 1,613,891
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Concise Financial Report
For the Year ended 31 December 2003

7. Segment Reporting
(a) Business Segments

The Economic Entity has the following reportable segments.

North West Shelf Ventures
Exploration, evaluation, development, production and sale of LNG, domestic gas, condensate, LPG and crude oil from the 
North West Shelf Venture. 

Oil Business Unit
Exploration, evaluation, development, production and sale of crude oil, in assigned permit areas and from the Laminaria 
and Legendre developments and the Mauritanian project. 

Group and Unallocated 
This segment comprises the activities undertaken by all other business units and corporate costs.

(b)  Geographical Segments

The Economic Entity’s divisions operate in two main geographical segments. These segments are derived on the basis of 
revenue from oil and gas operations and the location of the customer providing that revenue.

Australia
The main operating activities of the entity, producing assets and a significant portion of sales are within Australia. 

Asia
The majority of the entity’s sales are made to customers within this region. 

Other
Exploration, evaluation and development activities outside of Australia ie. Mauritania, Algeria and Gulf of Mexico. It also 
reflects sales to customers in the United States of America.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Concise Financial Report
For the Year ended 31 December 2003

Primary Reporting – Business Segments

 North West Shelf Oil Business Unit Group and Unallocated Consolidated

 Ventures

 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Revenue        

Revenue from oil and gas  1,498,897 1,466,739 551,935 773,864 8,450 - 2,059,282 2,240,603

operations

Cost of Sales        

Production costs (106,160) (123,548) (68,352) (65,309) (795) - (175,307) (188,857)

Royalties, excise and PRRT (185,552) (190,980) (95,406) (162,201) - - (280,958) (353,181)

Shipping and marketing (79,946) (106,058) (11,044) (972) - - (90,990) (107,030)

Depreciation and amortisation (102,654) (113,794) (115,176) (162,019) (5,288) - (223,118) (275,813)

Restoration provision (23,127) (14,104) (6,349) (7,981) - - (29,476) (22,085)

Total cost of sales (497,439) (548,484) (296,327) (398,482) (6,083) - (799,849) (946,966)

        

Gross profit 1,001,458 918,255 255,608 375,382 2,367 - 1,259,433 1,293,637

        

Other revenue 19,783 3,732 3,904 7,868 128,711 84,510 152,398 96,110

Share of net profit of equity

accounted associates - - - - (5,859) (6,306) (5,859) (6,306)

Borrowing costs expensed 2,030 (602) (32) - (56,034) (78,033) (54,036) (78,635)

Other expenses from ordinary

activities (30,888) (103,377) (60,631) (291,187) (432,489) (842,513) (524,008) (1,237,077)

        

Segment result 992,383 818,008 198,849 92,063 (363,304) (842,342) 827,928 67,729

Income Tax expense       (301,243) (159,721)

Net profit/(loss)       526,685 (91,992)

Segment Assets 2,842,718 2,524,445 853,007 560,843 1,086,574 1,925,280 4,782,299 5,010,568

Segment Liabilities 763,216 385,823 500,766 314,830 1,084,786 1,989,533 2,348,768 2,690,186

Other Segment Information        

Associates and other investments - - - - 59,070 129,448 59,070 129,448

        

Acquisition of oil and gas 

properties and other 

non-current assets

(excluding exploration) 243,374 161,670 127,998 124,817 144,724 195,581 516,096 482,068

        

Non-cash expenses other than

depreciation and amortisation 91,838 73,143 37,949 351,165 207,279 826,653 337,066 1,250,961
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Concise Financial Report
For the Year ended 31 December 2003

Secondary Reporting – Geographical Segments

 Australia Asia Other Consolidated

 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Segment Revenue

(by location of customer) 460,191 296,416 1,439,620 1,690,976 159,471 253,211 2,059,282 2,240,603

        

Segment Assets 4,196,297 4,145,221 116,123 233,877 469,879 631,470 4,782,299 5,010,568

        

Other Segment Information        

Acquisition of oil and gas 

properties and other 

non-current assets 440,799 338,515 - - 75,297 143,553 516,096 482,068

 

8. Events Subsequent to Balance Date
Dividends

 Since the reporting date, the Directors have declared a fully franked dividend of 25 cents (2002: 41 cents), payable in 
March 2004. The amount of this dividend will be $166,666,667 (2002: $273,333,333). No provision has been made for 
this dividend in the financial report as the dividend was not declared or determined by the Directors on or before the 
end of the financial year.

China Equity Sale

 The North West Shelf participants and CNOOC Limited (a listed subsidiary of China National Offshore Oil Corporation) 
announced on 16 May 2003 the formalisation of agreements to provide for CNOOC subsidiary CNOOC NWS Private Ltd. 
to acquire an interest in the NWS Venture titles and to secure rights to use NWS Venture infrastructure to process gas. 
Regulatory and other approvals required to complete these agreements remain outstanding at year end. 

 Subsequent to year end, CNOOC has, in relation to these agreements, paid US$80.5 million to Woodside but the 
agreements remain conditional with an anticipated completion in the first half of 2004. Accordingly this transaction has 
not been recognised in these financial statements. US$53 million of the payment is a deposit of 90% of the purchase 
consideration which will be recognised upon completion together with attributable costs, US$27.5 million is a portion of 
the tariff for future gas processing services which will be recognised over the 25 year period of supply. In the event that 
the agreements are not completed these amounts are refundable to CNOOC. 

Acquisition of Agip Mauritania B.V. 

 On 13 January 2004, Woodside concluded the acquisition of Agip Mauritania B.V. from ENI Exploration B.V., this 
transaction included the pro-rata sale of interests among the other joint venturers. Agip Mauritania B.V. held a 35% 
interest in the Mauritanian Production Sharing Contract (PSC) Area A and PSC Area B both of which are operated 
by Woodside. The net cost to Woodside, after the pro-rata allocation to joint venturers on 30 January 2004, is 
US$33.4 million, plus Woodside’s share of adjustments for activities after an effective date of 1 August 2003 totalling 
US$19.4 million. Woodside’s interest in the two PSC Areas after the transaction is 53.846%. There is also a further three 
US$5 million contingent payments that may be incurred if certain milestones are reached. Woodside’s share of these is 
about US$8 million.
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Directors’ Declaration

In the opinion of the Directors of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. the accompanying Concise Financial Report of the Economic 
Entity, comprising Woodside Petroleum Ltd. and its controlled entities for the year ended 31 December 2003, set out on pages 
44 to 55:

(a) has been derived from or is consistent with the Full Financial Report for the financial year; and

(b)  complies with Accounting Standard AASB 1039 “Concise Financial Reports”.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Charles Goode, AC    Erich Fraunschiel
Chairman     Chairman of Audit & Risk Committee

Perth
Date: 18 February 2004
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Independent Audit Report on the Concise Financial Report

Independent audit report to members of Woodside Petroleum Ltd.

Scope

The concise financial report and directors’ responsibility
The concise financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance, statement of cash 
flows and accompanying notes to the financial statements for the consolidated entity for the year ended 31 December 2003. The 
consolidated entity comprises both Woodside Petroleum Ltd. (the company) and the entities it controlled during the year.

The directors of the company are responsible for preparing a concise financial report that complies with Accounting Standard 
AASB 1039 “Concise Financial Reports”, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and 
for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the concise financial report.

Audit approach
We conducted an independent audit on the concise financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the members of the 
company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance 
as to whether the concise financial report is free of material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors 
such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of 
persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been 
detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the concise financial report is presented fairly in 
accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 1039 “Concise Financial Reports”. We formed our audit opinion on the basis of 
these procedures, which included:

• testing that the information in the concise financial report is consistent with the full financial report, and

• examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts, discussion and analysis, and other 
disclosures in the concise financial report that were not directly derived from the full financial report.

We have also performed an independent audit of the full financial report of the company for the year ended 31 December 
2003. Our audit report on the full financial report was signed on 18 February 2004, and was not subject to any qualification. 
For a better understanding of our approach to the audit of the full financial report, this report should be read in conjunction 
with our audit report on the full financial report.

Independence
We are independent of the company, and have met the independence requirements of Australian professional ethical 
pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001. In addition to our audit of the full and concise financial reports, we were 
engaged to undertake the services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of the full financial report. The provision 
of these services has not impaired our independence.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the concise financial report of Woodside Petroleum Ltd. complies with Accounting Standard AASB 1039 
“Concise Financial Reports”.

Ernst & Young         J P Dowling
Partner
Perth
Date: 18 February 2004
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Shareholding Information
As at 3 February 2004

Number of Shareholders
There were 69,286 shareholders. All issued shares carry voting rights on a one for one basis.

Distribution of Shareholding

Size of Shareholding Number of Shareholders % of Holders Number of Shares % of Shares

1–1,000 41,167   59.42   22,876,605     3.43

1,001–5,000 23,718   34.23   53,859,780     8.08

5,001–10,000 2,819     4.07   20,545,135     3.08

10,001–100,000 1,455     2.10    33,481,687     5.02

100,001 and over 127     0.18 535,903,460   80.39

Total 69,286 100.00 666,666,667 100.00

Unmarketable Parcels
There were 459 members holding less than a marketable parcel of shares in the Company.

Listing
The Company’s shares are quoted on the Australian Stock Exchange.

Twenty Largest Shareholders

Shares Held  % of Issued      
Capital

Shell Energy Holdings Australia Limited 228,456,275   34.27

JPMorgan Nominees Australia Limited   66,338,853     9.95

National Nominees Limited   58,942,624     8.84

Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited   54,778,640     8.22

ANZ Nominees Limited   23,188,470     3.48

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited   17,424,213      2.61

Queensland Investment Corporation      9,299,251     1.39

AMP Life Limited     7,183,397     1.08

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited     6,122,578     0.92

RBC Global Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited     4,398,045     0.66

Cogent Nominees Pty Limited     3,632,030     0.54

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited (CFS WSLE Imputation Fund Account)     2,624,552     0.39

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited (CFS WSLE Australian Share Fund Account)      2,342,021     0.35

Australian Foundation Investment Company Limited (Investment Portfolio Account)     2,150,000     0.32

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited (CFS WSLE Geared Share Fund Account)     2,096,349      0.31

IOOF Investment Management Limited     2,081,999      0.31

UBS Private Clients Australia Nominees Pty Ltd     1,827,586     0.27

Cogent Nominees Pty Limited (SMP Accounts)     1,764,895     0.26

Suncorp Custodian Services Pty Limited     1,700,236     0.26

Perpetual Trustee Company Limited     1,619,756     0.24

Total 497,971,770   74.70

Substantial shareholders as disclosed in substantial shareholder notices given to the Company are as follows:

Shell Energy Holdings Australia Limited  228,456,275 34.27
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Year Ended 31 December 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Profit and Loss ($ Million) Sales Revenues LNG/Domestic Gas 708 666 705 620 554 550 501 467 451 441 

Condensate 415 398 349 366 256 268 240 165 151 85 
LPG 57 59 60 72 41 20 26 12 1                 -   
NWS Oil 287 296 295 317 47 109 103 93 6                 -   
Laminaria 348 565 817 979 91                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   
Legendre 204 208 119                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   
Total 2,019 2,192 2,345 2,354 989 947 870 737 609 526 

EBITDAX Before Significant Items 1 1,386 1,382 1,779 1,937 605 691 667 560 450 371 
EBITDA After Significant Items 2 1,090 404 1,683 1,908 587 676 661 554 447 369 
EBIT After Significant Items 2 854 114 1,331 1,510 443 523 510 384 309 235 
Exploration After Significant Items 2 296 978 96 29 18 16 6 6 3 2 
Depreciation & Amortisation 236 290 352 398 144 153 151 170 138 134 
Borrowing Costs/Interest Received/Receivable 26 46 70 102 59 52 76 76 104 95 
Tax  After Significant Items 2 301 160 351 441 53 170 159 117 85 54 
NPAT Before Significant Items 3 527 658 818 877 327 300 275 196 141 86 
NPAT After Significant Items 2 527 (92) 910 967 331 300 275 191 121 86 
EPS (cents) Before Significant Items 3 79.0 98.6 122.7 131.6 49.1 45.0 41.2 29.4 21.1 12.9 
EPS (cents) After Significant Items 2 79.0 (13.8) 136.5 145.0 49.7 45.0 41.2 28.6 18.1 12.9 
DPS (cents) 4 46 62 70 82 26 23 20 16 12 9 
Payout Ratio (%) 58.2 -449.3 51.3 56.6 52.3 51.1 48.5 55.9 66.4 70.0
EBITDA/Op Cash Flow (%) 90.6 33.5 151.8 127.8 105.7 171.6 130.9 107.6 134.8 130.9

Balance Sheet ($ Million) Capital Expenditure Exploration 305 232 278 243 148 216 76 43 48 70 
PP&E and E&D 516 482 511 245 288 554 282 62 106 98 

Total Assets 4,782 5,011 6,115 5,969 4,721 4,403 3,435 3,016 3,157 3,119 
Debt 1,068 1,429 1,662 1,415 1,835 1,583 1,081 1,007 1,411 1,490 
Net Debt 891 1,274 1,502 1,140 1,691 1,466 1,005 876 1,263 1,316 
Shareholder Equity 2,434 2,320 2,554 2,111 1,691 1,533 1,387 1,245 1,161 1,122 

Cash Flow ($ Million) Cash Flow From Operations 1,203 1,207 1,108 1,493 555 394 505 515 332 282 
Investing (741) (730) (811) (428) (717) (637) (325) (113) (161) (152)
Financing (419) (484) (418) (948) 212 265 (258) (412) (203) (106)

Ratios (%) ROACE Before Significant Items 3 14.9 16.5 22.4 26.8 11.0 11.9 13.7 10.1 8.0 5.5
ROACE After Significant Items 14.9 -1.5 24.8 30.7 12.4 12.7 13.7 10.5 8.8 5.4
Return on S/holders’ Funds Before Significant Items 3 21.7 28.4 32.0 41.5 19.4 19.6 19.8 15.7 12.1 7.6
Return on S/holders’ Funds After Significant Items 21.7 -4.0 35.6 45.8 19.6 19.6 19.8 15.3 10.4 7.6
Gearing 26.8 35.5 37.0 35.1 50.0 48.9 42.0 41.3 52.1 54.0

Volumes Sales LNG (Tonnes) 1,340,269 1,248,444 1,249,969 1,265,168 1,271,100 1,242,599 1,216,444 1,219,115 1,203,000 1,089,723
Domestic Gas (Tj) 110,230 97,455 97,820 88,572 90,155 86,576 78,181 74,192 70,965 78,089 
Condensate (bbl) 9,834,057 9,740,893 8,970,219 8,759,449 8,803,565 10,823,889 9,080,221 6,730,571 6,434,000 3,557,000 
NWS Oil (bbl) 6,447,015 7,124,958 7,164,489 7,381,405 1,914,704 4,198,358 3,748,847 3,934,938                 -                   -   
Laminaria (bbl) 8,537,260 14,408,915 20,953,851 25,410,972 2,640,596                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -   
Legendre (bbl) 4,797,926 5,132,164 2,844,026                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -   
LPG (Tonnes) 134,680 127,372 131,726 127,631 137,439 100,897 88,704 51,633                 -                   -   
Total boe 000’s 58,993 62,702 66,391 64,726 39,140 39,634 35,941 33,113 29,059 26,033 

Production LNG (Tonnes) 1,355,207 1,272,685 1,291,703 1,279,944 1,291,740 1,285,232 1,255,290 1,252,949 1,242,959 1,115,141 
Domestic Gas (Tj) 110,230 97,455 97,820 88,572 90,155 86,576 78,181 74,192 70,873 78,013 
Condensate (bbl) 9,873,712 9,950,809 8,741,254 8,935,707 9,130,320 10,159,324 9,182,002 7,199,067 5,801,076 3,803,822 
NWS Oil (bbl) 6,550,742 7,291,095 7,147,796 7,068,042 2,281,375 3,955,874 3,648,807 4,316,060 260,105  - 
Laminaria (bbl) 8,439,050 15,164,362 20,613,879 25,591,993 2,657,409                 -                   -                   -    -  - 
Legendre (bbl) 4,619,770 5,209,508 2,975,846                 -                   -                   -                   -   -  -  - 
LPG (Tonnes) 134,480 135,188 133,937 133,655 107,978 111,952 92,100 56,199 6,660  - 
Total boe 000’s 58,946 64,210 66,322 64,988 39,735 39,270 36,312 34,232 28,098 26,030 

Reserves (Probable)
Gas  (Bcf) 4,654 4,840 4,540 4,600 4,720 4,630 4,680 4,460 3,120 3,450 
Condensate  (MMbbl) 145.7 154.9 154.6 149.4 159.2 158.9 161.2 164.1 142.0 157.3 
Oil  (MMbbl) 341.5 300.1 263.6 236.4 146.1 137.3 113.9 123.5 45.9 46.6

Other Employees 2,219 2,418 2,420 2,198 2,141 2,365 1,661 1,332 1,054 1,074 
Shares High ($) 15.10 15.05 16.42 15.25 12.25 10.86 13.36 9.19 7.20 5.20 

Low ($) 10.00 11.50 12.29 9.30 7.10 6.80 8.66 6.61 4.60 3.80 
Close ($) 14.80 12.38 13.39 14.75 11.25 7.30 10.82 9.19 6.86 4.74 
Number (000’s) 666,666 666,666 666,666 666,666 666,666 666,666 666,666 666,666 666,666 666,666 

No. Shareholders 69,491 67,523 55,347 42,135 43,201 43,898 34,526 30,669 27,885 27,718 
Market Capitalisation ($ Million) 9,867 8,253 8,927 9,833 7,500 4,867 7,213 6,127 4,587 3,160 
Finding Costs ($/boe) (Three-year average) 5 2.06 1.37 1.23 0.61 0.52 0.73 0.42 0.42  n/a  n/a 
Effective Tax Rate (%) 36.4 235.8 27.9 31.3 13.8 36.2 36.6 38.1 41.2 38.6 
Net Debt/Total Cap (%) 9.0 15.4 16.8 11.6 22.6 30.1 13.9 14.3 27.5 41.6

1 Includes Significant Items other than 2002 Successful Efforts and 2001 Gulf of Mexico E&E write-off.
2 Includes Significant Items.
3 Excludes Significant Items (2002 results restated to reflect effect of Successful Efforts approach from January 2002).
4 DPS for 2003 includes a 25.0 cents dividend that was declared after 31 December 2003.
5 Finding Cost for 2003 includes acquisitions of additional Scope for Recovery volumes.

Ten-Year Comparative Data Summary
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Glossary
appraisal well a well drilled to follow up a discovery and evaluate its commercial potential

bbl, bbl/d barrels, barrels per day

Bcf billion (109) cubic feet

boe, boe/d barrels of oil equivalent, barrels of oil equivalent per day

condensate hydrocarbons, which are gaseous in a reservoir, but which condense to form a liquid as they rise to the surface

development well a well drilled specifically into a previously discovered field

finding cost cost of finding a barrel of oil

FPSO a floating production storage and offloading facility

gearing (%) net debt ÷ (shareholders’ equity + net debt)

HSE health, safety and environment

hydrocarbons compounds containing only the elements hydrogen and carbon, they may exist as solids, liquids or gases

joint venture a group of companies who share the cost and rewards of exploring for and producing oil or gas from a permit or licence

km, km2 kilometres, square kilometres

licence area of specified size, which is licensed to a company by the government for production of oil and gas

LNG liquefied natural gas

LPG liquefied petroleum gas

MMbbl million barrels

MMboe million barrels of oil equivalent

Mt, Mt/a million tonnes, million tonnes per annum

NWS, NWS Venture North West Shelf, North West Shelf Venture

operator
a company which organises the exploration and production programs in a permit or licence on behalf of all the interest 
holders in the permit or licence

payout ratio (%) dividends paid ÷ net profit after tax

permit area of specified size, which is licensed to a company by the government for exploration of oil and gas

PJ, PJ/a petajoules, petajoules per annum

proved/probable reserves refer to definitions on page 20 of the Report

reserves replacement ratio refer to definitions on page 20 of the Report

return on average capital 
employed (ROACE) (%)

net profit after tax ÷ (average of current and prior years’ (shareholders’ equity + debt) )

return on shareholders’ 
equity (ROE) (%)

net profit after tax ÷ shareholders’ equity

scope for recovery or SFR refer to definitions on page 20 of the Report

Shell Royal Dutch/Shell Group, a substantial shareholder in Woodside

total shareholder returns 
(TSR) (%)

(dividends paid + share price movement between 31 December current year and 31 December prior year) ÷ closing 
share price as at 31 December prior year

t, t/d tonnes, tonnes per day

Tj, Tj/d terajoules, terajoules per day

2-D, 3-D two-dimensional, three-dimensional

$, $m Australian dollars unless otherwise stated, millions of dollars

Conversion Factors1

2003 2002

Domestic Gas 1 terajoule = 163.6 163.4

LNG 1 tonne = 8.9055 8.865

Condensate 1 barrel = 0.9031 0.8979

NWS Oil 1 barrel = 0.9750 0.9749

Laminaria Oil3 1 barrel = 0.9115 0.9749

Legendre Oil 1 barrel = 0.9718 0.9749

LPG 1 tonne = 8.1876 8.1501

(1)  Refer to the Reserves Statement Definitions on page 20 of this Report for the conversion factors used in Reserves reporting.
(2)  Minor changes to some conversion factors can occur over time due to gradual changes in the process stream.
(3)  The conversion factor for Laminaria Oil reduced from 0.9750 to 0.9115 on 1 July 2003.

Barrel of Oil Equivalent2
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For detailed shareholder information, please refer to page 42 of this Report.

Key shareholder contact points are:
Company Share Registry
Computershare Investor Services Pty. Limited
GPO Box D182
Perth  Western Australia  6840

Telephone: (61) 3 9615 5970 (outside Australia)
 1300 557 010 (within Australia)
Facsimile: (61) 8 9323 2033
E-mail: web.queries@computershare.com.au
Website: www.computershare.com

Woodside Petroleum Ltd.
Woodside Plaza
240 St Georges Terrace 
Perth  Western Australia  6000
Telephone: (61) 8 9348 4000
Facsimile: (61) 8 9214 2777 
Website: www.woodside com.au

2004 Annual General Meeting
When: Thursday, 15 April 2004
 At 10.00 am (WST)

Where: Grand Ballroom
 Burswood Convention Centre
 Great Eastern Highway
 Burswood  Western Australia

Calendar of Events

21 January Fourth Quarter 2003 Report

18 February Full Year 2003 Result and Final Dividend Announcement

1 March Ex-dividend Date

5 March Dividend Record Date

12 March 2003 Concise Annual and Full Financial Reports available

12 March Notice of Annual General Meeting and Proxy Form mailed to shareholders

26 March Final Dividend Payment

13 April Proxy returns close at 10.00 am (WST)

15 April Annual General Meeting

21 April First Quarter 2004 Report

30 June Woodside Half Year End

21 July Second Quarter 2004 Report

18 August Half Year 2004 Result and Interim Dividend Announcement

30 August Ex-dividend Date

3 September Dividend Record Date

24 September Interim Dividend Payment

24 September Half Yearly 2004 Report available

20 October Third Quarter 2004 Report

31 December End of Woodside Financial Year 2004

Shareholder Information



Business Directory

Australia
Woodside Petroleum Ltd.

240 St Georges Terrace 

Perth  WA  6000

Telephone: (61) 8 9348 4000

Facsimile: (61) 8 9214 2777

Darwin

NT House

Level 8

22 Mitchell Street

Darwin  NT  0800

Telephone: (61) 8 8980 2700

Facsimile: (61) 8 8980 2710

Karratha

Burrup Peninsula

Karratha  WA  6714

Telephone: (61) 8 9348 4000

Facsimile: (61) 8 9158 8000

Melbourne

Level 9

313 La Trobe Street

Melbourne  VIC  3000

Telephone: (61) 3 9252 2000

Facsimile: (61) 3 9252 2099

International
Houston

Woodside Energy (USA) Inc.

1980 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1650

Houston  Texas  77056  USA

Telephone: (1) 713 963 8490

Facsimile: (1) 713 963 8868

London

Woodside Energy (UK) Ltd

4th Floor, 7 Albemarle Street

London  W1S 4HQ  UK

Telephone: (44) 20 7514 5560

Facsimile: (44) 20 7629 9096


